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The Honorable Ray Bourque, Mayor 
and Members ofthe Board of Aldermen 

City of Broussard, Louisiana 

Adverse and Unmodijìed Opinions 

We have auðiteð the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the btisiness-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Broussard, Louisiana (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Citys basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Adverse Opinion on Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units 

In our opiriion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the Basis for Adverse and 
Unrnodified Opinions section of our report, the fmancial statements referred to above do not present fairly the 
financial position of the aggregate discretely presented component units of the City of Broussard, Louisiana, as 
of June 30, 2022, or the changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Unrnodified Opinions on Governrnental Activities, Business-Type Activities, and Each Major Funð 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective fmancial position ofthe governmental activities, business-type activities, and each major fund ofthe 
City of Broussard, Louisiana, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financia1 position and, where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America, 

BasisforAdverse and Urnnodijìed Opinions 

We conducted our audit in aceordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Finaneial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City, 
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethieal requirements relating to 
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our adverse and unmodified audit opiuions. 

Member ot: Member of: 
AMERICAN INSTITLITE OF SOCIETr OF LOLJISIANA 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 1 CERTIFIED FUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



Matters Giving Rise to Adverse Opinion on the Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units 

The finaneial statements do not include financial data for the City of Broussards legally separate 
component units. Aceounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofArneriea require the finaneial 
data for those component units to be reported with the fmancial ðata ofthe Citys primary goverrnnent unless 
the City ofßroussard also issues finaneial statements for the financial reporting entity that incluðe the financial 
clata for its component units. The City of Broussard has not issued sueh reporting entity financial statements. 
Because of this departure from aceounting prineiples generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, ancl expenses of the discretely presented component units would have 
been reported as $2,534,879, $13,180, $2,521,699, $1,888,869, and $2,099,803, respectively. 

Change in Accounting Frinciple 

As deseribed in Note 7 to the flnancial statements, in 2022 the City adopted new accounting guidanee, 
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinion is not modifieð with respect to this matter. 

Responsibilities ofManagenientfor the Financial Stateinents 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally aeeepted in the Unitcd States of Ameriea; this includes the 
design, irnplementation, ancl maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are frec from material misstatement, whether ðue to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is requirecl to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, eonsidered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Citys ability to continue as a going 
coneem for twelve rnonths beyond the finaneial statement date, ineluding any currently known information that 
may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor s Responsibiliðiesfor the Audìt ofthe Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assuranee about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordanee with generally aceepted auditing standarcls ancl Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements 
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the fmancial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally aceepted auditing standards, we: 

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identit and assess the risks of material misstatement of the [inancial statements, whether due to 
fraud or eiror, and desígn ancl perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
ine1ude examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and discìosures in the financial 
statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit proceðures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effeetiveness ofthe Citys intemal control. Accordingly, no sueh opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as welJ as evaluate the ovoraJl presentation of the 
financial statemonts. 
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• Conclude whetber, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Citys ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period oftimo. 

We are required to eommunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scopo and timing ofthe audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supp!enienlary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Statos of America require the budgetary 
comparison information, schedule of employer s share of net pension liability, and schedule of employer 
contributions on pages 49 througb 54 be presented to supplement the basic financial statoments. Such 
information, although not a part ofthe basic fmancial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic fmancial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required upp1ementary information in accordance with auditing standards genorally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consisteney with management s responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

The City of Broussard bas omitted management s dìscussion and analysis that accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part ofthe basic fìnancial statements, is requircd by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, wbo considers it to be an essential part of financia1 reporting for 
placing the basìc financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or bistorical eontext. Our 
opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the fmancial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Broussard, Louisianas basic financial statements. The eombining and 
comparative statements and various sehedules included in other supplementary information are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part ofthe basie financial statements. 

The comparative statements and the Justice System Funding Schedule are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate direetly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic fmancial statements. Such inforination has been subjeeted to the auditing procedures app1ied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements ancl certain additiona1 procedures, including comparing ancl 
reeonciling such information directly to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the basie financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standarcls generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, these comparative 
statements and the Justice System Funding Schedule are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 

The prior year eomparative information on the combining and comparative statements has been derived 
from the City ofBroussards 2021 fmancial statements, which was subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such iriformation directly to the underlying aceounting and other records used to prepare the basie 
finaneial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally aceepted in the United States ofAmerica and, in our opinion, was 
fairly presented, in all material respects, in relation to the basic fmancial statements as a whole, 
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Other Information 

Management is resportsihle for the other information included in the annual report. The other 
information comprises the various schedules but does not include the basic financial statements and our 
auditors report thereon. Our opinions on the basic fmancial statements do rtot cover the other iirformation and 
we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

Jn connection of our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic 
fmancial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement oíthe other information exists, we are 
required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Reqnired by Governmeni Audiling StandaTds 

In accorðance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 
27, 2022, on our consideration of the City of Broussard, Louisianas internal control over fmancial reporting 
and on our tests of its complianee with cortain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal eontrol over 
financial reporting and compliance and the resu1ts of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over fmancial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

Kolder, Slaven & Company, LLC 
Certifiod Public Accountants 

Lafayette, Louisiana 
December 27, 2022 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



GOVERNMENT-WIDE 
FLNANCIAL STATEMENTS (GWFS) 



327,0 15 

38,081 
46,000 

845,000 
128,564 
493,818 

I ,878,478 

146,163 

20,117 
987,903 

23,213,519 

24,367,702 

26,246,180 

1,622,359 
2,352,389 

850,000 
178,991 
213,646 

1,680,000 
217,904 
493,818 

7,609,107 

731,317 
853,927 
335,106 

1,336,220 
38,807,533 

42,064, 103 

49,673,210 

525,143 

38,752,122 

131,242 

1,228,3 19 

$ 40,111,683 

65, 139,533 
7,767,490 
1,895,883 
2,845,830 

(1,609,771) 

$ 76,038,965 

CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Statement ofNet Position 
June 30, 2022 

Business-

 

Type 
Activities Total 

$ 680,184 $ 15,045,408 
699,933 2,656,139 
(36,815) - 
231,248 888,036 
107,879 426,337 

1,682,429 19,015,920 

1,608,495 6,308,301 

5,180,948 17,372,518 
57,818,596 81,623,552 

67,395 579,534 

64,675,434 105,883,905 

66,357,863 124,899,825 

413,659 
923,834 

1,337,493 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash ancl interest-bearing deposits 
Receivables, net 
Intemal balances 
Due from other govemmental agencies 
Prepaid items 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets - 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 
Capital assets - 

Land and construction in progress 
Capitai assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
Right-of-use asset, net 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred Ioss on bond refunding 
Deferred outflows relatcd to pensions 

Tota1 deferred outflows of resources 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts, salaries and other payables 
Deferred revenue 
Due to other governmental agencies 
Right-of-use lease liability 
Notes payable 
Bonds payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Customers deposits payable 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Coinpensated absences payable 
Net pension liability 
Right-of-use lease liability 
Notes payable 
Bonds payable, net of discount on bond issuance 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOIJRCES 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restrictecì for sales tax dedications 
Restricted for debt service 
Restricted for extemal Iega1 constraint 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total net position 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 14,365,224 
1,956,206 

36,815 
656,788 
318,458 

17,333,491 

4,699,806 

12,191,570 
23,804,956 

512,139 

41,208,47 1 

58,541,962 

413,659 
923,834 

1,337,493 

1,295,344 
2,352,389 

850,000 
140,910 
167,646 
835,000 

89,340 

5,730,629 

585,154 
853,927 
3 14,989 
348,3 17 

15,594,014 

17,696,401 

23,427,030 

525,143 

26,387,411 
7,767,490 
1,764,641 
2,845,830 

(2,838,09) 

S 35,927,282 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe basic financial statements. 
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FUNJ) FJIANCAL STATE1LENTS (EFS) 



MAJOR FUNII) DESCRIPTIONS 

General Fund 
The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with governments which are not 
required to be accounted for in another funcl. 

Special Revenue Funds 
special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditures for 
particular purposes. 

1992 Sales Tax Fund - 
To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the Citys 1992 1 % sales and use tax (rededicated in 1998). 
These taxes are dedicated to be used for (1) constructing, improving, operating and maintaining waterworks 
facilities, fire protection facilities, and police protection facilities, including the acquisition of equipment 
therefore, (2) constructing, improving, operating and maintaining sewers and sewerage disposal works, and 
(3) constructing, iinproving, operating and maintaining public streets and bridges and drainage facilities, 
including the acquisition of equipment therefore, aiid shall be used to fund any bonds issued for any of the 
aforesaid purposes to pay for the eapital costs thereof. 

TIF Sales Tax Fund - 
To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the Citys 2006 1 % TIF district sales and use tax for the 
Broussard Economic Development Distriet. These taxes are dedicated to be used to fund revenue bonds to 
be issued to finance eeonoiiiic development projects within the district. 

2011 Recreational Sales Tax Fund 
To account for the receipt and use of proceeds of the Citys 201 ri 1/2% recreational facilities sales and use 
tax. These taxes are dedicated to be used for the operations of the park and for the payment of revenue 
bonds associated with the acquisition, construction and equipping of recreational faeilities and related 
infrastructure throughout the City. 

Capital Irojects Fund 
Capital projects funds are used to aceount for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities other than those finaneed by proprietary funds. 

LCDBG/Streets CaDital Proiects Fund - 
To account for the improvements of various proj ects using proceeds from grant revenue and Citys funds. 

Enterprise Funds 
Utilily Fund - 
To account for the provision of water, sewer, and garbage collection services. A11 activities necessary to 
provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administîation, operations, 
maintenance, fmancing, debt serviee, billing and collection. 

Parks and Recreation Fund - 
To account for the operation of the St. julien Park Sports Complex and Arceneaux Park. A1I fees and 
revenues derived from these facilities and all related expenses are accounted for in this fund. 
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CITY OF EROUSSARD, LOIJISIANA 

Reconciliation ofthe Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Staternent ofNet Position 

June 30, 2022 

$ 17,535,564 Total fund balances for governmental fiinds at June 30, 2022 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
position is different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 

Land 
Construction in progress 
Buildings and improvements, net of $1,963,485 accumulated depreciation 

Equipment and vehicles, net of$2,302,783 accumu1ated depreciation 

Inilastructure, net of $7,745, 126 accurnulated depreciation 

$ 1,255,611 
10,935,959 

1,756,942 
1,347,671 

20,700,343 35,996,526 

Intagib1e right-of-use assets used in govemmental activities are not financial 

resources, and therefore, are not reported in the fund. 

Right-of-use assets, net 

The deferred loss on bond refunding is not an available resource, and 
therefore, is not reported in the funds 

The deferred outfiows of expenditures in the municipal police employees 
retirement system are not a use of current resources, and therefore, are not 
reported in the funds 

512,139 

413,659 

923,834 

Long-terrn liabilities at June 30, 2022: 

Compensated absences payable 

Net pension liability 

Notes payable 

Right-of-use liabilities 
Bonds payable 
Accrued interest payable 

(585,154) 

(853,927) 

(515,963) 

(455,899) 
(16,429,014) 

(89,340) (18,929,297) 

The deferred inflows of contributions for the municipal police employees 
retirement system are not available resources, and therefore, are not 
reported in the funds 

Total net position of governmental activities at June 30, 2022 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe basic financial statements. 
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(525, 143) 

$ 35,927,282 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Reconciliation ofthe Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances ofGovernmental Funds 

to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Total net changes in fund balarices at June 30, 2022 in the 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the 
statement ofactivities is different because: 

Governmental funds report capita1 outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is a1located over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as clepreciation expense. 

Capita1 outlay which is considered expenditures in the statement 
ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances 

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 
Loss on disposa1 of capital assets 

$ (1,395,209) 

$ 6,820,415 
(1,522,176) 

(2,673) 5,295,566 

Bond proceeds are reported as financing sources in governmental funds 
and thus contrìbute to the change in fund batarice. In the statement of 
net position, however, issuing debt increases longterm liabilities and 
does not affect the statement of activities. Similarly, principa1 
payments are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds but 
reduce the liability in the statement of net position. Also, governmental 
funds report the effect ofpremiums, discounts, and similar items when 
debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized 
in the statement of activities: 

Principa1 payments 
Proceeds from intagible right-to-use assets 
Amortization of bond premium 

Loss on refunding amortized 

Expenses reported in the statement of activities are recognized when liabilities 
are incurred; while expenditures are recognized at the fund level when cash 
payments are made. The amounts below represent the difference between 
the expenses incurred at the government-wide levei and current financial 
resources expended at the fund level 

Compensated absences 
Interest expense 

Pension expense 

Non-employer contributions to the municipal police employees retirement systein 

Tota1 ehanges in net position at June 30, 2022 in the statement ofactivities 

1,214,217 
(507,742) 

83,507 
(29,547) 760,435 

(81,371) 
4753 

(161,021) (237,639) 

35,799 

$ 4,458,952 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic flnaneial statements. 
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262,647 44,022 
20,046 300 
3,789 33,026 

32,783 5,298 
46,000 - 

- 845,000 
- 128,564 

493,818 - 

859,083 1,056,210 

306,669 
20,346 
36,815 
38,081 
46,000 

845,000 
128,564 
493,818 

1,915,293 

100,480 
15,544 

987,903 

1,103,927 

1,963,010 

45,683 
4,573 

23,213,519 

23,263,775 

24,319,985 

146,163 
20,117 

987,903 
23,213,519 

24,367,702 

26,282,995 

28,633,816 10,118,306 38,752,122 
131,242 131,242 

835,584 392,735 1,228,3 19 

$ 29,469,400 $ 10,642,283 $40,1 11,683 

CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Combined Statement ofNet Position 
Proprietary Funds 

June 30, 2022 

Parks and 
utility Recreation 
Fund Fund Total 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits $ 246,591 $ 433,593 $ 680,184 

Accounts receivable, net 669,183 30,750 699,933 
Due from other governmental agencies 226,687 4,561 231,248 
Prepaid insurance 70,672 37,207 107,879 

Total current assets 1,213,133 506,111 1,719,244 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricteð assets - 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 493,818 1,114,677 1,608,495 
capital assets - 

Land and construction in progress 1,901,499 3,279,449 5, 180,948 
Capital assets, net 27,766,220 30,052,376 57,818,596 
Right-of-use asset, net 57,740 9,655 67,395 

Total noncurrent assets 30,2 19,277 34,456, 157 64,675,434 

Total assets 3 1,432,410 34,962,268 66,394,678 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Due to other ftinðs 
Right-of-use lease liability 
Loan payable 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Bonds payable 
Accrued interest 
Customers deposits 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensatcd absences payable 
Right-of-use lease liability 
Loan payable 
Bonds payable 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe basic financial statements. 
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3,136,288 
2,382,094 
1,395,079 

6,913,461 

(1,669,597) 

2,584,859 
37,971 

2,622,830 

(1,909,697) 

3,136,288 
2,382,094 
1,395,079 
2,584,859 

37,971 

9,536,291 

(3,579,294) 

1,120 
(25,882) 

29,198 
28,300 

32,736 

(1,636,861) 

152,915 

17,110 
(702,065) 
(22,841) 

(349,078) 

(1,056,87) 

(2,966,571) 

31,114 

18,230 
(727,947) 
(22,841) 

(349,07 8) 
29,198 
28,300 

(1,024,138) 

(4,603 ,432) 

184,029 

CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOTRSIANA 

Conibined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Parks and 
Utility Recreation 
Fund Funð Total 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Water 
Sewer 
Garbage 
st. julien Sports Complex 
Arceneaux Park 

Total operating expenses 

Loss from operations 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest earned 
Interest expense 
Amortization of premrium on bond 
Debt issuance eost 
Grant revenue 
Gainlloss on disposal ofcapital asset 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Loss before capital contributions and transfers 

Capital contributions 

$ 4,605,630 $ 713,133 $ 5,318,763 
638,234 638,234 

5,243,864 713,133 5,956,997 

Transfers: 
Transfer from Capital Projects 1,609,226 - 
Trarisfer from 1992 Sales Tax Fund 400,000 - 
Transfer from Recreational Sales Tax Fund - 2,655,625 

Total transfers 2,009,226 2,655,625 

Change in net position 525,280 (279,832) 

Net position, beginning, as restated 28,944,120 10,922,115 

Net position, ending $ 29,469,400 $ 10,642,283 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthe basic financial statements. 
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1,609,226 
400,000 

2,65 5,625 

4,664,85 1 

245,448 

39,866,235 
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$ 4,424,865 
(4,602, T 93) 

(907,764) 
638,234 

(446,858) 

1,710 

2,009,226 

29,198 
54,450 

2,094,584 

(45,000) 
(25,882) 
152,915 

(1,835,602) 

(1,753,569) 

1,120 

1,120 

(104,723) 

$ 713,133 
(1,377,929) 

(763 ,474) 

(1,428,270) 

36,551 

2,655,625 

2,692,176 

(95,000) 
(738,579) 

31,114 
(111,878) 

(914,343) 

(1,1 14,677) 
1,098,092 
(349,078) 

(22,841) 
17,110 

-oe 94 

(21,831) 

$ 5,137,998 
(5,980,122) 
(1,671,238) 

638,234 

(1,875,128) 

38,261 

4,664,85 i 

29,198 
54,450 

4,786,760 

(140,000) 
(764,46 l) 
184,029 

(1,947,480) 

(2,667,912) 

(1,1 14,677) 
1,098,092 
(349,078) 

(22,841) 
18,230 

(370,274) 

(126,554) 

845,132 455,424 1,300,556 

$ 740,409 $ 433,593 $ 1,174,002 

$ (1,669,597) $(1,909,697) $ (3,579,294) 

1,441,735 962,507 2,404,242 

(180,765) 
(177,806) 

(18,071) 
96,857 
7,568 

48,326 
4,895 

$ (446,858) 

(1,956) 

(481,481) 
(9,943) 
19,833 

(12,478) 
9,872 

(4,927) 

$ (1,428,270) 

(182,721) 
(177,806) 
(481,481) 

(28,014) 
t 16,690 
(4,910) 
58,198 

(32) 

$(1,875,128) 

CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUTSIANA 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Parls and 
Utility Recreation 
Funð Fund Total 

Cash fiows from operating activities: 
Receipts from customers 
Payrnents to suppliers 
Payments of employees 
Other incomc 

Net cash used by operating activities 

Cash fiows from noncapital fmancing activities: 
Cash paid to other funds 
Transfers from other funds 

Grant revenue 

Net increase in customer deposits payable 
Net cash provideð by noncapital financing activities 

Cash fiows from capital and related financing activities: 
Principal paid on bonds 
Interest and fiscal agency fees paid on bonds 
Capital contributions 
Acquisition of capital assets 

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities 

Cash fiows from investing activities: 
Purchase of interest-bearing deposits 
Maturities of interest-bearing ðeposits 
Debt issuance cost 
Amortization of premium on bond 
Tnterest on cash and investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning ofperiod 

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofperiod 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash 
used by operating activities 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

used by operating activities - 
Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities - 

Accounts receivable 
Due from other govemmental agencies 
Discount on bonð issuance 
Prepaid insurance 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Vehicle lease payable 
Compensated abscnces payab1e 

Net cash used by operating activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CtTY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting policies 

The accompanying financial statements of the City of Broussard (City) have been prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to govemmental units. 
The accounting and reporting framework and the more• significant accounting policies are discussed in 
subsequent subsections of this note. 

A. Financial Reorting Entity 

The City ofBroussard was incorporated in 1884 under the provisions of the 
Lawrason Act. The City operates under the Mayor-Board of Aldermen form of 
government. 

The fnanciaJ reporting entity should consist of (a) the primary government, 
(b) organizations for which the primary governmerit is financially accountable, and (c) 
other organizations for which the primary government is not accountable, but for which 
the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary govermnent are such 
that exclusion would cause the reporting entitys financial statements to be misleading 
or incomplete. 

Section 2100 ofthe 201 1 Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
Codijìcation of Governncntal Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, 
Defining the Financial Reporting Entity establishes criteria for determining which 

entitîes should be considered a component unit and, as such, part ofthe reporting entity 
for financiaj reporting purposes. The basic criteria are as follows: 

1. Legal status ofthe potential component unit including the right to incur its 
own debt, levy ìts own taxes and cbarges, expropriate property in its own 
name, sue and be sued, and the right to buy, sell and lease property in its 
own name. 

2. Whether the priffiary governinents governing authority (City of 
Broussard) appoints a majority of board members of the potential 
component unit and is able to impose its will on the potential component 
unit or the potential component unit is fiscally dependent on the primary 
govemment. 

3. Financia1 benefitlburden relationship between the primary govemment 
and the potential component unit. 

4. The nature and significance of the relationship between the potential 
component unit with the primary government are such that exclusion would 
ca•use the reporting entitys financial staternents to be misleading. 

18 



CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Based on these critcria, the City has ideritified the following component units: 

Broussard Fire Department 

The Broussard Fire Dcpartment is a non-profit corporation established in i98 
for the purpose of iinpedìng, eradicating and extinguishing all types ofdestructive fires 
within or near the City of Broussard. There are five (5) members of the goveming 
board ofthe Broussard Fire Department, consisting ofthe layor, oue member ofthe 
Board of Aldermen, the fire chief, and two (2) elected members of the corporation. 
Bonded debt issued by the Broussard Fire Department must be approved by the City 
Council. 

Complete financial statements for the Broussard Fire Departinerit may be 
obtaineð upon request at Broussard City llall. 

Broussard Economic Development Corporation 

The Broussard Economic Development Corporation was chartered in 1993. 
The City of Broussard appoints a majority of the Corporations Board and has the 
ability to impose its will on the Corporation. 

These primary government financial statements of the City of Broussard do 
not include the financial data ofthe component units described above. This component 
unit financial data is necessary for reportìng in conforinity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

Complete fìnancial statements for the Broussarð Economic Development 
Corporation may be obtained upon request at Broussard City Haî1. 

Thesc primary government financial statements of the City of Broussard do 
not include the financial data ofthe component units described above. This component 
unit financial data is necessary for rcporting in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting prìnciples. 

B. Basis ofPresentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (GWFS) 

The statemerit of net position and statement of activities display information 
about the reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting 
entity. The statements distinguish between governmenta1 and business-type activities. 
Governinental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental 
revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type actìvities are financed ìn 
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

The statement ofactivitíes presents a comparison between direct expenses and 
program revenues for the business-type activities of the City and for each function of 
the Citys governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically 
associated with a program or function and, therefore, are cfearly identifiable to a 
particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the 
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, and (b) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including 
all taxes, are presentcd as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A 
fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a separate set ofself-balancing 
accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose and 
is used to aid management in demonstrating eompliance with finance-related legal and 
contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with 
legal and managerial requirements. 

The various funds ofthe City are classified into two eategories: governmental 
and proprietary. The emphasis on fund financial statements is on major governmentai 
and proprietarý funds, each displayed in a separate column. AII remaining funds are 
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 

A furid is considercd major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or 
meets the following eriteria: 

a. îotal assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses ofthat 
individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent 
of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type; 
and 

b. îotal assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses ofthe 
individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 5 perccnt 
of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise 
funds eombined. 

The major funds ofthe City are described below: 

Governmental Funds-

 

General Fund 

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. llt is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another 
funcl. Additionally, it is used to aecount for the receipt and use of the proceeds of the 
Citys 1975 one percent sales and use tax. These taxes may be used for any lawful 
public purpose. 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continueð) 

Special Revenue Funds 

1992 Sales Tax Fund - 

The 1992 Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the receipt and use of the 
proceeds ofthe Citys 1992 one percent saes and use tax (reðedicated in 1998). These 
taxes are ðedicated to be used for (1) constructing, improving, operating and 
maintaining waterworks facilities, fire protection facilities, and police protection 
facilities, including the acquisition of equipment therefore, (2) constructing, 
improving, operating, and maintaining sewers and sewerage ðisposal works, and (3) 
constructing, iinproving, operating and maintaining public streets and bridges and 
drainage facilities, including the acquisition of equipment therefore, and shall be used 
to fund any bonds issued for any of the aforesaid purposes to pay for the capital costs 
thereof. 

TIF Sales Tax Fund - 

The TIF Sales Tax Fund is used to account for the receipt and use of the 
proceeds of the Citys 2006 one percent TIF District sales and use tax levied on the 
businesses located in the Broussard Economic Development District. These taxes are 
dedicated to be used to fund revenue bonds to be issued to finance economie 
development projects within the District. 

20 1 1 Recreational Sales Tax Fund - 

The 201 1 Recreational Sales Tax Fund is used to account for receipt and use 
of the proceeds of the Citys 201 1 one-half percent recreational sales and use tax. 
These taxes are dedicated to be used for the operations ofthe park and for the payment 
of revenue bonds associated with the aequìsition, construction, and equipping of 
recreational facilities and relateð infrastructure throughout the City. 

Capital Projects Fund 

LCDBG/Streets Capital Projects Fund — 

The LCDBG/Streets Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the 
improvements of various projects utilizing proceeds from grant revenues and Citys 
funds. 

21 



CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUtSIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Proprietary Funds - 

Enterprise Funds 

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the 
governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) ofproviding goods 
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges; or (b) where the goveming body has decided that 
periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes. The City of Broussards enterprise funds are the 
Utility Fund and the Parks and Recreation Fund. 

In addition, the City reports the following nonmajor governmentai funds: 

Debt Service Funds 

The debt service funds are used to accumulate monies for payment of the 
Citys various sales tax bonds, which are being financed by the 1975 and 1992 sales 
taxes revenues. 

C. Measurement FocusfBasis of Accounting 

Measurement focus is & term used to describe which transactions are 
recorded within the various financial statements. Basis ofaccounting refers to when 
transactions are recorded regardless ofthe measurement focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

On the government-wide statement of net position and the statement of 
activities, both govemmental and business-type activities are presented using the 
economic resources measurement focus as defined in item b. below. 

In the fund financial statements, the current financial resources measurement 
focus or the economic resources measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a. A11 governmental funds utilize a current financial resources 
measurement focus. Only current financial assets and liabilities are 
generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements 
present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources 
during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure 
of available spendable fmancial resources at the end of the period. 

b. The proprietary funds utilize an economic resources measurement 
focus. The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the 
determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost 
recovery), financial position, and cash flows. A1I assets and liabilities 
(whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activities are 
reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net position. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Contirnied) 

Basis of Accounting 

ln the government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities, 
both governmental and business-type aetivities are presenteci using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the accrual basis of ac.countìng, revenues are recognìzed when 
earned and expenses are recorðed when the liability is incurred, or econornic asset 
used. Revcnues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from exchange and exchange-
like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. 

Governmental funð financial statements are reported using the current financial 
resources rneasurement foeus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues 
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are 
consìdered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of 
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures (ìncluding eapital outlay) generally 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual aceounting. However, debt 
service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due. 

The proprietary funds utílize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded 
when the liability is ineurred, or eeonomic asset used. 

D. Assets, Deferred Outflows, Lìabilities, Deferred Jnflows and Eguity 

Cash anð interest-bearing deposits 

For purposes of the statement of net position, cash and interest-bearing 
ðeposits include all demand accounts, savings accounts, and certificates of deposits of 
the City. For the purpose of the proprietary funds statement of cash flows, cash and 
cash equivalents include all demand and savings accounts and certificates ofdeposits 
with an original maturity ofthree rnonths or less. 

lnterfund receivables and payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between 
individual funds that may result in arnounts owed between funds. Those related to 
goods and services type transactions are classified as due to and from other funds. 
Short-term interfund loans are reported as interfund reeeivables and payables. 

Long-term interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as advances from 
and to other funds. lnterfund receivables and payables between funds withìn 
governmenta1 aetivities are eliminated in the statement of net position. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Receivables 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues carned 
at year-end and not yet received. Major receivablc balances for the governmental 
activities inc.lude sales and use taxes, franchise taxes, and grant funds. Business-lype 
activitics report custorners utility service receivables as their major receivables. 
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based on historical trends and the 
periodic aging of accounts rcceivable. The allowance for uncollectible utili1y 
receivables was 119,827 at June 30, 2022. Unbilled utili1y service receivables 
resulting from utility services rendered between the date of meter reading and billing 
and the end of the month, are recorded at year-encl. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure 
assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns 
in the government-wide or financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at 
historical cost or estiinated cost if historical is not available. Donated assets are 
recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. 
The Ci1y maintains various threshold Ieve1s for capitalizing capital assets. The Ieve1s 
are as follows: 

General Fund $ 2,500 
Utili1y Funð 5,000 
Parks and Recreation Fund 2,500 

The eosts ofnormal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value ofthe 
asset or materially extend assets 1ives are not capitalized. Prior to the adoption of GASB 
34, the City did not have a complete listing of infrastructure. At that time, the City 
began accumulating infrastructure information prospectively. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated 
expense in the statement of activities, with accumulatec1 depreciation reflected in the 
statement ofnet asscts. Depreciation is provided over the assets estimated useful lives 
using the straight-Iine method of depreciation. Thc range of estimated useful lives by 
type of asset is as follows: 

Buildings and improvements 10 -40 years 
Equipment and vehicles 3 - 20 years 

utility system and improvements 5 - 40 years 

Infrastructure 1 0 - 40 years 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund 
operations are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund 
upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for 
the same as in the government-wide statements. 
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Notes to Basic Financîal Statements (Continued) 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets indude cash and interest-bearing deposits of the 
governinental funds and proprietary funds that are legally restricted as to their use. The 
restricted assets are related to debt service interest sinking and reserve accounts and 
utility meter deposits. 

Iong-term debt 

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are 
used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they 
are rcported in the. government-wide or fund financial statements. 

A11 long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type 
resources is reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term 
debt consists primarily ofthe revenue bonds payable and utility meter deposits payable. 

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund 
financial statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and 
payinent of principal and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting for 
proprietary fund Iong-term debt is the same in the fund staternents as it is in the 
government-wide statements. 

Compensated Absences 

Unused vacation is paid at the end of each calendar year. Unused sick leavc 
up to 60 days may be carried over, with up to 30 days of the accumulated balance 
payable at termination of employment. At June 3 0, 2022, the City has $73 1,3 17 of 
noncurrent accumulated leave benefi.ts requireð to be reported in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 16 Accounting for Compensated Absences. 

Dcferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources 

hi some instances, the GASB requires a government to delay recognition of 
decreases in nct position as expenditures until a future period. In other instances, 
governments are required to delay recognition of increases in net position as revenues 
until a future period. ln these circurnstances, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources result from the delayed recognition of expenditures or 
revenues, respectively. At June 30, 2022, the Citys ðeferred outflows of resources 
and ðeferred inflows of resources are attributable to the unamortized loss on the bond 
refiinding and the pension plan. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statemcnts (Continued) 

Equity Classifications 

In the govcrnment-wide statemcnts, equity is classified as net position and 
displayed in three components: 

a. Net investment in capital assets Consîsts ofnet capital assets reduced 
by outstanding balances of any related debt obiigations and deferred 
inflows of resources attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of those assets and increased by balances of deferred 
outflows of resources related to those assets. 

b. Restricted net position —Net position is considered restricted ifthe use 
is constrained to a particular purpose. Restrictions are imposed by 
extcrnal organizations sucb as federal or state laws or buycrs of the 
Citys debt. Restricted net position is reduced by liabilities and 
deferred inflows ofresources related to the restricted assets. 

c. Unrestrictecl net position — Consists of all other net position that does 
not meet the definition of the two components and is available for 
general use by the City. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund equity is classified as fund 
balance. As such, funð balances ofthe governTaental funds are ciassified as follows: 

a. Nonspendablc amounts that cannot be spent either because they arc 
in nonspendable form or beeause they are legally or conlractually 
tequired to be maintained intact. 

b. Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes 
because of constitutional provisions or enabling Iegislation or because 
of constraints that are externally imposed hy creditors, grantors, 
contributors, or the Iaws or regulatioas of other governments. 

c. Committed — amounts that can be used oniy for speeific purposes 
determined by a formal decision of the Citys Mayor and Board of 
Aidermen, whicb is the highest level of decision-making authority for 
the City. 

d. Assigned — amounts that do not meet the eriteria to be ciassified as 
restricted or committed but that are intended to be used for specific 
purposes detcrmined by a formal decision of thc Citys Mayor and 
Board ofAlderinen. 

e. Unassigaed — all other spendable amounts. 
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Notes to Basic pinaneial Statements (Continued) 

When an expenditure is incurred for the purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestrictcd fund balance is available, the City considers restricted funcls to have been spent 
first. When an expenditure is incurred for which comrnitted, assigned, or unassigned fund 
balances are available, the City eonsiders amounts to have been spent first out of committed 
funds, then assìgned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the City has 
providcd otherwise in their commitment or assignment actions. 

Proprietary (Utility and Par1s and Reereation) fund equity is classified the same as 
in the government-wide statements. 

E. Revenues, Expenditures, and Expenses 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from 
providing services and producing and delivering goods andlor services. It aJso ineludes all 
revenue and expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or 
investing activities. 

ExpendituresfExpenses 

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are classified by function for 
both govemmental and business-type activities. 

In the fund financial statements, expenditures are cJassified as follows: 

Governmenta1 Funds - By Character 
Proprietary Funds - By Operating and Nonoperating 

ln the fund financial statements, governrnental funds report expenditures of finaneial 
resources. Proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources. 

lnterfund Transfers 

Permanent reallocations of resources between funds of the reporting entity are 
classified as interfund transfers. For the purposes of the statement of aetivities, all interfund 
transfers between individual governrnental funds have been eliminated. 

Revenue Restrictions 

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or 
local requirements. The primary restricted revenue sources include: 

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use 

Sales tax See Note 12 
Water, sewer and garbage revenue Utility operations 

The City uses unrestricted resourccs only when restricted resources are fully 
depleted. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

G. Capitalization of Interest Expense 

It is the policy of the City of Broussard to capitalize material amounts of interest 
resx1ting from borrowings in the course ofthe construction ofcapital assets in the proprietary 
funds. At iune 30, 2022, there were no borrowings for assets under construction and no 
capitalized interest expense was recorded on the books. 

H. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in eonformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles rcquires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reporteð amounts ofassets and liabilities and disclosure ofcontingent assets and liabilities 
at the date ofthe financial statements and the reported amounts ofrevenues and expenditures 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estixnates. 

(2) Çh anð Interest-Bearing Deposits 

Under state law, the City may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws 
ofthe State ofLouisiana, the laws ofany other state in the Union, or the laws ofthe United States. The 
City may invest in certificates and time deposits of the state banks organized under Louisiana law anð 
national banks having principa1 officcs in Louisiana. At Junc 30, 2022, the City had cash and interest-
bering dcposits (book balances) totaling $2 1,353,70 as follows: 

Non interest-bearing deposits $ 165,802 
Interest-bearing deposits 19,283,299 
Tixne deposits 1,904,608 

Total $ 21,353,709 

Custodial eredit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository 
fmancial institution, the City s deposits may not be recovered or will not be able to recover collateral 
seCurities that are in the possession of an outside party. These deposits are stated at cost, which 
approximates market. Under state law, these deposits, (or the resulting bank balanees) must be secured 
by federal ðeposit insurance or siinilar federal security or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal 
agent barik. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal dcposit insurance must at a11 
times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent bank. These seeurities are held in the name of 
the City or the pledging fiscal agent bank by a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to 
both parties. 

Deposit balances (bank ba1ances) at June 30, 2022, which are required to be secured are as 
follows: 

Bank balances $ 21,712,370 

Federal deposit insuranee 1,000,000 
Pledged securities 20,712,,370 

Total insured and secured bank balances $ 21,712,370 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Deposits in the amount of $20,7 12,370 were exposed to custodial credit risk. These deposits 
are uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging institution s trust department or 
agent, but not in the Citys nartie. Even though the pledged seeurities are considered uncollatoralized, 
Louisiana Revised Statute 39: 1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise 
and sell the pledged seeurities within 10 days of being notified by the City that the fiscal agent has 
faijed to pay deposited funds upon demand. The City does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. 

Receivables 

Receivables at June 30, 2022 consisted ofthe following: 

Accounts 
Unbilled uti1ity 
1975 1% sales taxes 
1992 1% sales taxes 
TIF sales taxes 
2011 112% sa1es taxes 
Franchise taxes 

Totals 

Governmental Activities 
General Sales Tax 

Fund Funds 

$ - $ 

641,292 
641,294 
233,934 
320,646 

119,040 

$ 760,332  

J3usiness-Type Activities 
utility Parks and 
Fund Recreation 

$ 499,058 $ 30,750 
170,125 - 

Total 

$ 529,808 
170,125 
641,292 
641,294 
233,934 
320,646 
1 19,040 

$ 2,656,139 $ 1,195,874 $ 669,183 $ 30,750 

Due from Other Governmental Units 

Due from other govcrnmental units at June 30, 2022 consisted ofthe following: 

Governmental Activities - 
Goneral Fund: 

Due from State of Louisiana for beer tax revenue earned through June 30, 2022 
Due from State of Louisiana for video poker revenue earned through June 30, 2022 
Due from Department of Homeland Security (FEMA) for hurricane related expenses 

LCDBGIStrects Capital Projects Fund: 

Due from Louisiana Division of Administration for reimbursement of expenditures 
Total governmental activities 

Business-Type Activities - 
utility Fund: 

Due from Louisiana DOTD for HWY 90 water line relocation 
Due from State of Louisiana for LGAP/CWEF 

Parks and Recreation Fund: 

Due from Department of Homeland Security (FEMA) for hurricane related expenses 
îotal business-type activities 

Total due from other governmental agencies 

(4) 

$ 8,014 
21,351 

335,245 

292,178 

656,788 

182,113 
44,574 

4,561 

231,248 

$ 888,036 
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(5) Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets eonsisted ofthe following at June 30, 2022: 

20 15 revenue bond and interest sinking fund 
2015 revenue bond reserve fund 
20 16 revenue bond and interest sinking 
20 l 6 revenue bond reserve fund 
20 l 1 DEQ bond and interest sinking fund 
201 1 DEQ bond reserve fund 
Saint Martin sales tax reinvestment fund 
2012 revenue bond and interest sinking 
2012 revenue bond reserve fund 
Customers deposits 

Total restricted assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 183,979 
208,863 
684,191 
435,140 

76,174 
265,629 

2,845,830 

$4,699,806  

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 

306,591 
1,114,677 

493,818 

$1,915,086  

Total 

$ 183,979 
208,863 
684,191 
435,140 

76,174 
265,629 

2,845,830 
306,591 

1,114,677 
493,8118 

$ 6,6 14,892 

(6) Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 follows: 

Balance Balance 
07/0 1/21 Additions Deletions 06/3 0/22 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Other capital assets: 
Buildings and improvements 

Equipment and vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Total capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Buildings and improvements 
Equipm.ent anð vehicles 
Infrastructure 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Governmental activities, 
capital assets, net  

$ 1,213,659 $ 41,952 
5,704,808 5,797,266 

3,713,178 8,249 

3,798,975 445,569 
27,859,718 585,751 

42,290,338 6,878,787 

1,820,073 144,412 
2,580,153 314,047 
6,778,196 966,930 

11,178,422 1,425,389  

$ - $ 1,255,6111 
566,115 10,935,959 

1,000 3,720,427 

594,090 3,650,454 
- 28,445,469 

1,161,205 48,007,920 

1,000 1,963,485 
591,417 2,302,783 

- 7,745,126 

592,417 12,011,394 

3 1,111,916 5,453,398 568,788 35,996,526 

(Continued) 
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(6) Capital Assets (Continued) 

Balance Balance 

07/01/21 Additions Deletions 06/30/22 

Business-type activities: 

Capital assets not being depreoiated: 

Land - Sewer system 
Land - Parks ancl Recreation 

Construction in progress: 
utility Fund 
Parks and Recreation Fund 

Other capital assets: 
Plant and equipment - Water system 
Plant and equipment - Sewer system 
Buildings - Parks and Recreation 
Autos and office equipment - Utility 
Equipment - Parks and Recreation 
Vehicle - Parks and Recreation 

Totals capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Plant and equipment - Water system 
Plant and equipment - Sewer system 

Buildings - Parks and Recreation 
Autos and office equipment - utility 
Equipment - Parks and Recreation 
Vehicle - Parks and Reoreation 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Business-type activities, 
capital assets, net  

$ 1,048,966 $ -$ - $ 1,048,966 

3 ,279,449 - 3,279,449 

1,365,537 1,645,937 2,158,941 852,533 
10,144 10,144 - 

14,882,565 1,568,256 - 16,450,821 
29,775,640 634,133 - 30,409,773 
33,611,491 78,835 - 33,690,326 

1,003,365 21,983 - 1,025,348 

846,196 28,218 - 874,414 

46,590 - - 46,590 

85,869,943 3,977,362 2,169,085 87,678,220 

8,351,742 419,664 8,77 1,406 
9,509,833 926,077 10,435,910 

3,218,865 843,795 4,062,660 
862,910 49,496 912,406 
358,947 107,210 466,157 
23,901 6,236 30,137 

22,326,198 2,352,478 24,678,676 

63,543,745 1,624,884 2,169,085 62,999,544 

Depreciation cxpense was charged to governmental activities as follows: 

General government 
Public safety 
Streets 

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type activities as follows: 

Water system 
Sewer system 
Parks and Recreation 

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities 

$ 183,276 
204,487 

1,037,626 

$ 1,425,389 

$ 440,782 
954,455 
957,24 1 

$ 2,352,478 
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27,871 

878 

28,749 

115,466 

42,805 

5,266 

48,071 

(48,07 1) 

128,416 

15,799 

144,215 

70,676 

6,144 

76,820 

67,395 

128,416 - 

:15,799 - 

144,215 - 

CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(7) Leased Assets 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City implemented GASBS No. 87, Lêases, for 
accounting and reporting leases that had previously been reported as operating leases. During the year 
ended June 30, 2022, the City leased various vehicles at various terms. Due to the commencement date 
of the related lease agreement, restatement of prior period financial statements was considered 
necessary. The effect on net position is as follows: 

Governmental Proprietary 
Funds Funds Total 

july l, 2021 net position, as previously reported (3 1,477,715) (39,870,005) (71,347,720) 

Change in accounting principle: 
Net effect of GASB No. 87 implementation 

July 1, 202 l net position, as restated  

9,385 3,770 13,155 

(3 1,468,330) (39,866,235) (71,334,565) 

The City recognizes a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in 
the government-wide financial statements. The lease activity for the year follows: 

Governmental activities: 
lntangible Right-to-use-assets 

Less: accumulated amortization 

Intangib1e right-to-use-assets, net 

Balance 
07/01/21 

136,483 

35,300 

101,183 

Additions Deletions 

507,743 - 

96,787 - 

410,956 - 

Balance 
06/30/22 

644,226 

132,087 

512,139 

Business-type activities: 

Right-to-use-assets - utility Fund 

Right-to-use-assets - Parks and Recreation 

Total intangible right-to-use assets 

Less: accumulated amortization 

Right-to-use-assets - utility Fund 

Right-to-use-assets - Parks and Recreation 
Total accumulated amortization 

Intangib1e right-to-use-assets, net 

(Continued) 
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(7) Leased Assets -Continued 

The leased asset will be amortized ovcr the lease term. Unamortized lease asset to be amortized 
in future periods is as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 

2027 

Governmental 
Funds 

173,574 
143,361 
118,516 

72,930 
375g 

512,139 

Proprietary 
Funds 

47,194 
20,201 

67,395 

The following is a summary of changes in the lease liability for the year ended June 30, 2022 

Govermental Funds 

Proprietary Funds 
Total 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 67,796 
94,698 

$ 162,494 

Additions 

$ 507,742 

$ 507,742 

Ending 
Reductions Balance 

$ 119,639 $ 455,899 
36,500 58,198 

$ 156,139 $ 514,097 

Due within 
One Year 

$ 140,910 
38,081 

$ 178,991 

At the commencement of a lease, the City initially measures the Iease liability at the present 
value of payments expected to be made during the lease term. For purposes of discounting fiiture 
payments on the lease, the City used the interest rate of4.10% - 3.85%. Subsequentty, the lease liability 
is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the 
initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease 
commencement ðate, plus certain initial direct costs. Subsequent1y, the lease asset is amortized on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter of its useful life or the lease term. 

Minimum lease payments through the lease term are as follows: 

Year Ended Governmental Activities 
June 3 0, Principal Interest 

2023 $ 140,910 $ 21,102 
2024 127,948 14,071 
2025 111,692 7,606 
2026 71,096 1,929 
2027 4,253 107 

$ 455,899 $ 44,815  

Business-type Activities 
Principal Interest 

$ 38,081 $ 1,616 
20,117 375 

$ 58,198 $ 1,991 
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(8) Accounts, Salaries and Other Payables 

Accounts, salaries, and other payables consisted ofthe following at June 30, 2022: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Collection fees payable 
ContTacts payable 
Retainage payable 

Totals 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 275,703 
176,610 

10,765 
468,740 
363,526 

$ 1,295,344 

Business-Type 
Activities 

$ 306,669 
20,346 

$ 327,015 

Total 
$ 582,372 

196,956 
10,765 

468,740 
363,526 

$ 1,622,359 

(9) Due 10 Other Governmental Agencies 

Ainounts due to other governmental agencies at June 30, 2022 in the amount of $850,000 
consists of$340,000 for 1975 sales taxes (accounted for in the General Fund), $340,000 for 1992 sales 
taxes, and $ 170,000 for 20 1 1 recreational sales taxes due to the Lafayette Parish School Systein Sales 
Tax Office for sales taxes erroneously remitted to the City. 

(10) Long-Term Liabilities 

The following is a summary of long-term liabilities tTansactions of the City for the year endeð 
June 30, 2022: 

Revenue Notes Compensated 

Bonds Payable Absences 

Governmental Activities: 
Balance, June 30, 2021 

Aðditions 
De1etions 

Balance, June 30, 2022 

$ 15,958,879 

(889,000) 

$ 15,069,879 

$ 721,541 

(205,578) 

$ 515,963 

$ 503,783 
120,317 
(3 8,946) 

$ 585,154 

Revenue Notes Compensated 
Bonds Payable Absences 

Business-type Activities: 
ßalance, June 30, 2021 

Aðditions 
Deletions 

Balance, June 30, 2022 

$ 24,635,000 
13,670,000 

(13,765,000) 

$ 24,540,000 

$ 1,078,903 

(45,000) 

$ 1,033,903 

$ 146,195 
26,237 

(26,269) 

$ 146,163 

(continued) 
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(10) Long-Term Liabilities - Continuj 

Long-term liabilities payable at June 30, 2022 is comprised ofthe following: 

Govemmental activities: Current 
Total Portion 

General obligation bonds - 

$4,000,000 201 1 Sales Tax Bonds due in annual installinents ranging 
froin $95,000 to $110,000 through May 1, 2032; interest at .95%; 
secured by a pledge of and payable solely from the proceeds of the 1 % 
1992 sales tax revenues. $ 1,779,879 $ 100,000 

$9,225,000 Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2015. due in annual 
installments ranging from $135,000 through $540,000 through May 1, 
2038; interest at 2.0%-5.0%; secureð by a pledge of and payable 
solely from the proceeðs ofthe 1% 1992 sales tax revenues. 6,940,000 410,000 

$7,855,000 Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2016, due in annual 
installments ranging from $290,000 to $545,000 through May 1, 2037; 
interest at 2%-4%; secured by a pleðge of and payable solely from the 
proceeds ofthe l% 1992 sales tax revenues. 6,350,000 325,000 

Total bonds payable 

Add: unamortized bond premium 
Net bonds payable - governmental activities 

Notes payable - 

$288,972 purchase agreement dated IvIay 25, 2020, due in five annual 
installments of $62,895 including interest of 2.9% through June 12, 
2025; secured by equipment with a book value of $231,178 
(appropriated to the Broussard Fire Department). 

15,069,879 

1,359,135 

$ 16,429,014 

178,292 

$ 835,000 

57,747 

$1,099,602 purchase agreement dateð May 29, 2020, due in six annual 
installments, one in the amount of $549,80 1 and five in the amount of 
$118,002 including interest of 2.4% through May 29, 2025; secured 
by equipment with a book value of $952,988 (appropriated to the 
Broussard Fire Department). 337,671 109,899 

Total notes payable - governmentai activities $ 515,963 $167,646 

(continued) 
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(10) jng-Term  Liabilitics - Continued 

Busiriess-type activities: 

Parks and Recreation Fund - 

$17,205,000 Recreational Facility Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 
2012, due in annual installments ranging from $210,000 through 
$950,000 through May 1, 2042; interest at I%-5%; secured by a 
pledge of and payable solely from the proceeds ofthe 1/2% 20 1 1 sales 
tax revenues. Bond was refunded with the Series 2021 Recreational 
Facility Sales Tax bond except for the un-callable portion of $9 10,000 
ofwhich $445,000 was paid in the current year. $ 465,000 $465,000 

$13,670,000 Recreational Facility Sales Tax Revenue Bond, Series 
2021, due in annual instalments ranging from $120,000 through 
$745,000 through May 1, 2023; interest at 1%-3%; secured by a 
pledge of and payable solely from the proceeds ofthe 1/2% 201 1 sales 
tax revenues. 13,605,000 120,000 

$12,000,000 Recreational Facility Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 
2015, due in annual installments ranging from $140,000 through 
$830,000 through May 1, 2045; interest at 2%-5%; secured by a 
pledge ofand payable solely from the proceeds ofthe 1/2% 2011 sales 
tax revenues. 10,470,000 260,000 

Total bonds payable 

Less: unamortized diseount on issuance of bond 

Net bonds payable - business-type activities 

Uti1ity Furid - 

Loan from the Louisiana Department of Health and ilospitals; interest 
at 2.45%; payable from the utilities system revenues. The balance at 
June 30, 2022 is net ofa 20% debt forgiveness. 

Total bonds and loan payable - business-type activities 

24,540,000 845,000 

(481,481) 

24,058,519 

1,033,903 46,000 

$ 25,092,422 $ 891,000 

The City borrowed $1,403,629 (of which $280,726 was forgiven) from the Louisiana 
Department of Health and Hospitals as an interim loan to finance the cost of the drinkirig water 
infrastructure iinprovements project. Upon completion of the project, the City will issue taxable 
utilities revenue bonds for permanent financing. The forgiveness of debt is recordcd as a capital 
contribution in the Utility Fund statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position. 

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for all bonds payable as of June 3 0, 2022 are 
as follows: 

(Continued) 
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(10) Long-Terni Liabilities - Continued 

Governniental Activitìes l3usiness-type Activities 

Year Ended Bonds Notes Payable Bonds and Loan 

June 3 0, Principal lnterest Principal lnterest Principal Interest 

2023 $ 835,000 $ 547,956 $ 167,646 $ 13,251 $ 891,000 $ 796,151 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

2028-.2032 
2033-2037 
203 8-2042 
2043-2046 

855,000 
895,000 
925,000 
950,000 

5,599,879 
4,555,000 

455,000 

521,356 
489,856 
465,684 
427,760 

1,601,966 
657,73 0 
18,658 

171,950 8,947 917,000 
1176,367 4,531 938,000 

954,000 
- - 981,000 
- - 5,284,000 
- - 6,1146,000 
- - 7,072,903 

767,390 
747,478 
724,890 
706,3 13 

3,130,518 
2,275,740 
1,209,328 

= - 1,908,519 193,800 

$ 15,069,879 $ 4,730,966 $515,963 $ 26,729 $25,092,422 $ 10,551,608 

(1 1) Prior Year Defeasance of I)ebt 

During fiscal year 2018, the City defeased $7,975,000 of Pub1ic Improvement Sales Tax 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 by purchasing U.S. Goverriment securities and creating separate 
irrevocable trust funds with an escrow agent. The investments and fixed earnings from the investments 
are sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. For fmancial 
reporting purposes, the dobt has been considered defeased and thorefore, has been removed as a liability 
from the Citys fmancial statements. As of June 30, 2022, the amount of defeased sales tax revernie 
debt outstanding but removed froin the finaneial statements amounts to $6,595,000 of Series 2007 sales 
tax bonds. 

(12) Dedication of Proceeds and Flow of Funds-Sales and Use Tax 

In 1975, the voters of the City approved a 1% sales tax (collected in the General Fund) to be 
used for any lawful public purpose. In 1998, the City incorporated areas in St. Martin Parish. [n 200 1, 
an agreement was made between the City and St. Martin Parish Government whieh requires the City 
to deposit into a Reinvestment Fund an aniount equal to /2 of the one cent sales tax collected in the 
incorporated areas. 

The funds are to be used for infrastructure development to directly benefit those areas. The 
balance of cash in the Reinvestment Fund at June 30, 2022 in the amount of $2,845,830 is restricted 
for external legal constraints in the fund balance ofthe General Fund statements and the net position of 
the governmental activities in the governinent-wide fmancial statements. 

The terms ofthe bond indenture relative to 1998 Sales Tax Bonds, Series A pledge and dedicate 
the proceeds ofthe 1975 sales tax to the retirement ofthese bonds and to establish and niaintain revenue 
bond siriking and reserve funds adequate to pay the revenue bonds and interest when due. Remaining 
revenues may then be used for any purpose for which the tax was authorized. The ordinance also 
contains provisions which restrict the issuarice of additional revenue bonds unless the above-mentioned 
sinking and reserve funds contain the required amounts and certain financial ratios are met. 
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ln 1992 (rededicated in 1998), voters ofthe City approved an additional 1% sales tax ðedicated 
to constructing, improving, operating and maintaining waterworks, fire and police protection facilities, 
sewerage works, streets, bridges and drainage. The terms ofthe bond indenturcs relative to the publìc 
Improvement Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 and 2008, the 201 1 Sales Tax Bonds, and the 
Salcs Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 20 1 5 and 20 16 pledge and dedicate the proceeds of the 1992 sales 
tax to the rctirement of these bonds and to establish and maintain revenue bond sinking and reserve 
funds adequate to pay the revenue bonds and interest on these bonds when due. Remaining revenues 
may then be used for any purposc for which the tax was authorized. The ordinances also contain 
provisions which restrict the issuance ofadditionai revenue bonds unless the above-mentioned sinking 
and reserve funds contain the required amounts and certain financial ratios are met. 

In 2006, voters of the City approved an additional 1% sales tax dedicated for financing 
economic development projects in the Broussard Eeonomic Devclopment District. The City currently 
has an intergovernmental agreemcnt with the State of Louisiana. The agreement states that the State 
will contribute 1% of sales and use tax money received in the area up to $10,000,000. The funds 
receivcd from the State have been accounted for in licu of local funds to finance the Ambassador 
Caffery Road Extension, originally constructed beginning in 2007. The amount collected in the fiscal 
year cnd June 30, 2022 is $ $892,119. As ofJune 30, 2022 the $10,000,000 agreement with the State 
has a current baiance remitted to the City of $9,767,697. 

ln 20 11, voters of the City approved an additional Y2% sales tax dedicated to the payment of 
revenue bonds associated with the acquisition, construction, and equipping ofrecreationai faeitities and 
related infrastructure throughout the City. 

Rccreational Facility Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2021, Series 2012 and Series 2015 
ordinances provide that revenues of the 20 1 1 sales tax are to be used to establish and maintain revenue 
bond sinking and reservc funds adequate to pay the rcvenue bonds and interest when due. Remaining 
revenues may then be used for any purpose for which the tax was authorized. The ordinance also 
contains provisions which restrict the issuance of additionaj revenue bonds uniess the required above 
mentioned sinking and reserve funds contain the required amounts and certain financial ratios are met. 

The City complied with all sìgnificant financial requirements ofthe bond ordinance as of June 
30, 2022. 

A11 of the above sales taxes werc issued in perpetuity. 

(13) Pension Plan 

Thc City participates in a cost-sharing defined benefit plan, administered by a publíc employee 
retirement system. Article X, Section 29(F) ofthe Louisiana Constitution of 1974 assigns the authority 
to establish and amend benefit provisions of all plans administered by the public employee retirement 
system to the State Legislature. The plan is not closed to new entrants. 

Municipat police Emptoyees Retirement System of Louisiana (MPERS) — 

Plan Description: Thc Municipal police Employees Retirement System is the administrator 
ofa cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership in MPERS is mandatory for any full-time policc 
officer employed by a municipality of the State of Louisiana and engaged in law enforcement, 
empowered to make arrests, providíng he or she does not have to pay social security and providing he 
or she meets the statutory criteria. MPERS provides retirement benefits for municipal police officers. 
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The projections of benefit payments in the calculation ofthe total pension liability includes all benefits 
to be provided to current active and inactive employees through MPERS în aecordance with benefit 
terms and any additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. 
MPERS issues a publicly available financial report that may be accessed on their website 
(bttp ://lampers.org). 

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and ainended by LRS 11:221 1-
1 1 :2233. The folkwing is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general 
information purposes on!y. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete 
information. 

The systems financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. 
Employcr and employee eontîibutions are recognized in the period in which the employec is 
compensated for services performed. Benefits are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the terms ofthe plan. Interest income is recognized when earned. 

Membershíp Prior to January 1, 20 I 3 — A member is eligible for regular retirement after he has 
been a member ofMPERS and has 25 years ofcreditable service at any age or has 20 years ofcreditable 
service and is age 50 or has 12 years creditable service and is age 5 5. A member is eligib!e for ear!y 
rctirement after he has been a member of MPERS for 20 years of creditable service at any age with an 
actuarially reduccd benefit. Benefit rates are three and one-third percent of average final compensation 
(average monthly eamings during the highest 36 consecutive months or joined months if service was 
interrupted) per number of years of creditable serviee, not to exceed 100% of final salary. 

Upon the death of an active contîibuting member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statutes, the benefits 
rangc from forty to sixty percent of the member s average final compensation for the surviving spouse. 
In addition, each child under age eighteen receives benefits equal to ten percent of the members 
averagc final compensation or $200 per month, whichever is greater. 

Membership Commencing January 1, 20 13 — Member eligibility for regular retirement, carly 
retirement, disability, and survivor benefits are based on Hazardous Duty and Non-Hazardous Duty 
sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement after he has 
been a member ofMPERS and has 25 years ofcreditable scrvice at ariy age or has 12 years ofcreditahle 
service at age 5 5. Under the Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular retirement 
after he has been a member of MPERS and has 30 years of ereditable service at any age, 25 years of 
creditable service at age 55, or 10 years ofcreditable service at age 60. 

Under both sub plans, a membcr is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of 
MPERS for 20 years of ereditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced bencfit from age 55. 
Under the Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are three pereent and two 
and a half pereent, respectively, of average final compensation (average monthly earnings during the 
highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if serviee was interrupted) per number of years of 
ereðitable service not to exceeð 100% of final salary. 

Upon death of an active contîibuting member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for 
surviving spouses and minor children. Under certain conditions outlined in the statues, the benefits 
range from twenty-five to fifty-five percent of the member s average final compensation for the 
surviving spouse. In addition, each child under age eighteen receives ten percent of average final 
compensation or $200 per month whichever is greater. If ðeceased member had less than ten years of 
service, beneficiary will receive a refund of employee contributions only. 

39 



CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

N•otes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Deferred Retirement Option plan: 

A member is eligible to e1ect to enter the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) when he is 
eligible for regular retirem.ent based on the members sub plan participation. Upon filing the 
application for the program, the employees active membership in MPERS is terminated. At the entry 
date into the DROP, the employee and employer contributions cease. The amount to be deposited into 
the DROP account is equal to the benefit computed under the retirement plan elected by the participant 
at date of application. The duration of participation in the DROP is thirty-six months or less. lf 
employment is terminated after the three-year period, the participant may receive his benefits by lump 
sum payment or a true annuity. If employment is not terminated, active contrihuting membership into 
MIPERS sball resume and upon later termination, he shall receive additional retirement benefit based 
on the additional service. 

For those eligible to enter DROP prior to January 1, 2004, DROP accounts shail earn interest 
subsequent to the termination of DROP participation at a rate of ha1f of one percentage point below the 
percentage rate of return of MPERSs investment portfolio as certified by the actuaiy on an annual 
basis but will never iose money. For those eligible to enter DROP subsequent to January 1, 2004, an 
irrevocabie election is made to earn interest based on MPERSs irivestment portfolio return or a money 
market investment return. This could result in a negative earnings rate being app!ied to the account. 

Jf the member elects a money market investment returri, the funds are transferred to a 
government money market account. 

Initia1 Benefit Option Plan: 

In 1999, the State Legislature authorized MIPERS to establish an Initia1 Benefit Option 
program. initial Benefit Option is available to members who are eligìble for regular retirement and have 
not participated in DROP. The Initia1 Benefit Option program provides both a one-time single sum 
payment of up to 3 6 months of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly retirement 
benefit for life. hiterest is computed on the balance based on same eriteria as DROP. 

Coritributions: 

Contributions for all members are actuarially determined as required by state law but cannot 
be less than 9% of the employees earnable compensation excluding overtime but inc!uding state 
supplemental pay. For the year ended June 30, 2022, total contributions due for employers and 
employees were 43.75%. The employer and employee contributiori rates for all members hired prior 
to January 1, 20113, and Hazardous Duty members hired after January 1, 2013, were 33.75% and 10%, 
respectively. 

Net Pension Liability: 

At June 30, 2022 , the City reported a liability of $853,927 for its proportionate share ofthe 
net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determineð by an actuarial valuation as of that 
date. The Citys proportionate share ofthe net pension 1iability was based on a projection ofthe Citys 
long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the Citys proportionate share was 
0.160195%. 

40 



CJTY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

Since the measurement date of the net pension liability was June 30, 2021, the net pension 
liability is based upon fiduciary net position for the plan as ofthat date. Detailed information about the 
pension plans assets, deferred oufflows, deferred inflows, and fiduciary net position that was used in 
the measurement of thc Citys net pension liability is available in the separately issued plan financial 
report for the fiscal year ended June 3 0, 202 1. 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

The following table provides information concerning actuarial assumptions used in the 
determination of the totai pension liability for the defined benefit plan in which the City is a 
participating employer: 

Date of experience study on which 
significant assumptions are based 

Actuarial cost method 

Expected remaining service livcs 

lnvestment rate of return 

Inflation rate 

Proj ected salary increases 

7/1/20014 - 6/30/2019 

Entry Age Normal Cost 

4 years 

6.75%, net of investment expense 

2.50% 

4.7% - 12.3% 

Mortality rates Pub-20 i 0 Safety Below-Median Healthy Retiree Table 
multiplied by 1 15% for males and 125% for females, each 
with full generational projection using the MP 2019 scale. 

Pub-2010 Safety Below-Median Employee Table multipiied 
by 115% for rnales and 125% for females, each with full 
generational projection using the MP 20 19 scale. 

Pub-2010 Safety Disable Retiree Table multiplied by 105% 
for males and 1 15% for females, each with full generational 
projection using the MP 2019 scaie. 

Cost-of-living adj ustments The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the System and includes 
previously granted cost-of-living increases. The present 
values do not include provisions for potential future 
increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustces. 

Cost ofLiving Adjustments: 

The pcnsion plan in which the City participates has the authority to grant cost-of-living 
adjustments (COLAs) on an ad hoc basis. Pursuant to LRS l i :242(B), the power of the Board of 
Trustees ofthe statewidc system to grant a COLA is effective in calendar years that the legislature fails 
to grant a COLA, unless in the legislation granting a COLA, the legislature authorizes the Board of 
Trustees to provide an additional COLA. The authority to grant a COLA by the Board is subject to the 
funded status and interest earnings. The effects of the benefit changcs made as a result of the COLAs 
included in the measurement of the total pension IiabiIity as of the measurement date at which the ad 
hoc COLA was granted and the amount is known and reasonably estimable. 

41 



CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Stateinents (Continued) 

Long-term Rate of Return: 

For MPERS, the long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building-block 
mothod in whicb best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of retnrn (expected returns, net of 
pension plaii investment expenses and infiation) are developed for each maor asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real 
rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected infiation and an 
adjustinent for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic/geometric real rates of return for each 
major asset class are summarized for each plan in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Expected Rate of Return 
Long-term 
Expected 

Target Asset Portfolio Real 
A11ocation Rate of Return 

Equity 
Fixed income 
Alternative 

Inflation 

Expected nominal return 

55.50% 3.47% 
30.50% O.59% 
14.0O% 1.01% 

100% 5.07% 

2.22% 

7.29% 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions: 

Changes in the net pension liability may either be reported in pension expense in the year the 
change occurred or recognized as a deferred ontflow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources in 
the year the change occurred and amortized into pension expense over a number ofyears. For the year 
ended June 30, 2022, the City recognizeð $371 ,682 in pension expense related to its participation in 
MPERS. 

At June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred oufflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to MPERS from the following sources: 

Governmental Activities 
Deferred Deferred 
Outflows Inflows 

of Resonrces of Resources 
Difference between expected and actua1 experience $ 
Cbanges of assumptions 
Change in proportion and differences between the employers 

contributions and the employers 
proportionate share of contribntions 

Net differonces between projected and actual earnings 
on plan investments 

- $ 26,298 
94,586 24,359 

618,605 75,769 

- 398,717 

Contributions subseqnent to the measurement date 210,643 - 

Total $ 923,834 $525,143 
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Deferred oufflows of resources of $2 10,643 resulting from the employer contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a rcduction of the net pension liability in the 
yeai ended June 30, 2022. Other amounts reported as dcferred outflows of resources and dcferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended 
June 30 

2023 
2024 
2025 

2026 

$ 260,899 
165,855 

(101,359) 
(137,365) 

$ 188,030 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that the plau member 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that sponsor contributions will be made 
at rates eua1 to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. 
Based on those assumptions, the pension plans fiduciary net position was projected to be available to 
ma1e all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investinents was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. The discount rate used to measure MPERSs net pension liability 
was 6.750% for the year ended June 30, 2021, which is a decrease of .200% from the prior year. 

Sensitivity of the Employers Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate: 

The following presents MPERS s net pension liability ofthe participating employers calculated 
using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the employers net pension liability would be if it 
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher 
than the current rate. 

Net Pension Liabilíty 

Current 
1% Discount 

Decrease Rate 
5.750% 6.750% 

$ 1,488,260 $ 853,927 

1% 
Incrcase 
7.750% 

$ 324,473 

Payables to the Pension Plan: 

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Citys payable for MPERS is $24,300, which is the 
contractuafly required contributions payable for the month ofJune 2022. 
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(14) Retirement anð Deferred Compensation 

A. Employees ofthe City are members ofthe Social Security System. The City and its employees 
contribute a percentage ofeach employees salary to the System (7.65 percent by the City; 7.65 
percent by the employee). The Citys contributions during the year endeð 2022 amounted to 
$478,63 1. 

B. The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with InternaI 
Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457. The single employer plan, the City of Broussard Deferred 
Compensation Plan, adininistered by the John Hancock, is available to all City employees and 
permits them to defer a portion oftheir salary until future years. The deferred compensation is 
not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. 
The City contributes 8% to 12% of wages to each participating employee account based on 
years of service. For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City and employees contributed 
$392,078 and $143,093, respectively. The Citys contributions are not mandatory. 

AII amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with 
those amounts, and all income atiributable to those amounts, property, or rights are (until paid 
or made available to the employee or other beneficiary) held in a trust, custodial account or 
annuity contract described in IRC 457(b) for the exclusive benefit ofthe participants and their 
beneficiaries. The fair market value ofthe deferred compensation plan assets at June 30, 2022 
was $3,861,215. 

(15) On-BehalfPayments of Sa1arie 

The State of Louisiana paið the Citys policemen $200, 183 of supplemental pay during the 
year ended June 30, 2022. That amount is included in the aecompanying financial statements as 
intergovernmental revenues and police expense in the government-wide statement of activities. 

(16) Risk Management 

Thc City is exposed to risks of loss in the areas of general and auto liability, property hazards, 
and workers compensation. Those risks are handled by purchasing commercial insurance. There have 
been no significant reductions in insurance coverage during the current fiseal year. Settlements have 
not exceeded insurance coverage during the three-year period ended June 30, 2022. 

(17) Litigation and Claims 

At June 30, 2022, the City was involved in several lawsuits claiming damages. ln the opinion 
ofthe Citys legal counsel, the only exposure to the City would be any costs in defense ofthe lawsuits 
with no liability in excess of insurance coverage. 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUIISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(11 8) Compensation of Board ofA1deii 

Compensation paid to the Board ofAldermen for the year ended June 30, 2022 folllows: 

Angel Racca 
David Bonin 
Jesse Regan 
Michael Rabon 
Kenny Hìgginbotham 
Ray Gary 
Jeff Delahoussaye 

$ 18,000 
18,000 
18,000 
18,000 
18,000 
18,000 
24,000 

$ 132,000 

(19) Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency llead 

The schedufe of compensation, benefits, and other payments made to Ray Bourque, Mayor, for 
the year enðed June 30, 2022 follows: 

Salary 
Benefits - insurance 
Benefits - retirement 
Car allowance 
Ce11 phone 
Internet 
Travel and conference 
Special meals 
Other (auto repairs) 
Other (vehicle gas expense) 

$ 83,052 
16,035 

6,644 
9,600 

600 
780 
919 
324 

1,220 
3,078 

$ 122,252 
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$ 1,300,000 $ 

6,749,647 

629,356 
7,3 56,449 
1,933,291 
2,655,625 
1,609,226 

2,009,226 
2,655,625 
1,469,449 

$ 14,183,947 $ 14,183,947 

CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(20) interfund Transactions 

A. Interfund receivables and payables consisted of the following at June 30, 2022: 

Receivable Payable 

Major funds: 
Governmental funds: 

General Fund $ 36,815 $ 598,728 

1992 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 20,000 s 
TIF Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund - 126,446 

LCDBG/Streets Capital Projects Fund 705,174 - 

Proprietary funds: 
Utility Fund - 3,789 

Parks and Recreation Fund - 33,026 

Non-major funds - ðebt service funds 5 - 

Total $ 761,994 $ 761,994 

These balances resulteð from short-term Ioans made to other funds. A11 
interfund balances wìll be rcpaid within one year. 

interfund transfers consisted ofthe following at June 30, 2022: 

Transfers ln Transfcrs Out 

Maj or funds: 
Governmental funds: 

General Fund 
1992 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 

TIF Saies Tax Special Revenue Fund 

201 1 Recreational Sales Tax Special Revenue Funð 

LCDBG/Streets Capital Projects Fund 

Proprietary funds: 
Utility Fund 
Parks and Recreation Fund 

Non-major funds - debt service funds 

Total 

Transfers are used to (a) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires 
to collect them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them and to (b) use 
unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for 
in other funds in accordance with budgetary authoriations. 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 

(21) Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue of $2,352,389 at June 30, 2022 consists of federal awards received under 
the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). The ARPA estab1ished the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds (SLFRF) on March 1 1, 202 1, to provide governments with the resources needed to 
respond to the pandemic and its economic offects and to build a stronger, more equitable economy 
during the recovery. The City is required to spend these funds in accordance with assistance listing 
2 1.027 guidance. These funds must be obligated by December 3 1, 2024 and expended by December 
31, 2026. The City expects to receive a second tranche payment in the amount of$2,348,562. 

As ofJune 30, 2022, the City has not expended any ofthe $2,352,389 received from the ARPA. 

(22) New Acconnting Pronouucements 

In June of2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued StatementNo. 
87, Leases. The objective ofthis statement is to better meet the information needs offinancial statement 
users by unproving accounting and financial reporting for lease by governments. This statement 
increases the usefulness of govertiment s financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease 
assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating 1eases and recognized as 
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. lt 
establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundatioual principle that leases are 
financing ofthe right to use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize 
a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor ¡s required to recognize a lease 
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of 
informatìon about governments leasing activity. The City adopted this standard in the year ended June 
30, 2022. 

(23) Uncertainties Arising Dnring and Aer Financial Statement Date 

As a result of the spread of the COVID 19 coronavirus, economic uncertainties have arisen 
which may have and may continue to impact the Citys ongoing operations. The cxtent and severity of 
the potential impact on future operations is unknown at this time. 
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$ 7,217,000 
1,637,000 

484,965 
500,000 
185,688 

10,024,653 

$ 7,813,756 
1,858,272 

552,466 
532,284 
381,187 

11,137,965 

$ 8,045,442 
1,942,632 

579,755 
522,695 
366,233 

11,456,757 

$ 231,686 
84,360 
27,289 
(9,589) 

(14,954) 

318,792 

CITY o BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Variance with 
Final Eudget 

Original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Licenses anð permits 
Intergovernmenta1 
Fines and forfeits and seizures 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current - 

General government 
Economic ðevelopment 
Public safety: 

Police 
Fire 

Streets and drainage 
Debt service 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Deficiency of revenue 
over expendritures 

2,384,780 2,317,719 2,462,760 (145,041) 
422,947 409,781 416,836 (7,05 5) 

3,659,425 3,8 17,765 3,788,161 29,604 
1,475,825 1,550,365 1,533,1 19 17,246 
3,327,116 3,454,439 3,458,922 (4,483) 

223,026 383,850 349,099 34,751 
6 16,432 1,068,043 1,154,923 (86,880) 

12,109,551 13,001,962 13,163,820 (161,858) 

(2,084,898) (1,863,997) (1,707,063) 156,934 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from capital leases - 
Transfer from 1992 Sales Tax Fund 2,100,000 
Transfer to Recreation Sales Tax Fund (98,458) 
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund L454,600) 

Total other financing sources (uses) 1,546,942 

508,099 507,742 (357) 
1,100,000 1,300,000 200,000 

660,120) (629,356) 30,764 

947,979 1,178,386 230,407 

Net change in fund balance (537,956) (916,018) (528,677) 387,341 

Fund balance, beginning, as restated 8,250,372 8,250,372 8,250,372 - 

Fund balance, ending $ 7,712,416 $ 7,334,354 $ 7,721,695 $ 387,341 



CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 
1992 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Sehedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Origina1 Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

$ 6,042,000 $ 6,564,821 $ 6,733,824 $ 169,003 

14,000 14,777 14,990 213 

6,056,000 6,579,598 6,748,8 14 169,2 16 

50,000 43,994 39,361 4,633 
15,050 14,060 - 14,555 (495) 

65,050 58,054 53,916 4,138 

5,990,950 6,521,544 6,694,898 173,354 

(2,100,000) (1,300,000) (1,300,000) - 
(550,000) (400,000) (400,000) - 

(1,464,748) (1,469,449) (1,469,449) 
(3 , 1 17,600) (4,232,000) (4, 187,000) 45 ,000 

(7,232,348) (7,40 1,449) (7,3 56,449) 45,000 

(1,241,398) (879,905) (661,551) 218,354 

4,986,834 4,986,834 4,986,834 

$ 3,745,436 $ 4,106,929 $ 4,325,283 $ 218,354 

Revenues: 
Taxes - 

Sales taxes - 1% 

Miseellaneous - 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current - 

General government: 
Collection fees 
Professional fees 

îotal expenditures 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other finaneing uses: 
Transfer to General Fund 
Transfer to Utility Fund 
Transfer to debt service funds 
Transfer to Street Capital Projects Fund 

Total other financing uses 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUTSIANA 
TIF Sales Tax special Reveriue Fund 

Budgetary Comparisori Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Revenues: 
Taxes - 

Sales taxes 
Miscellaneous - 

Interest 

Total revenues 

Original Final 
Budget Budget Actual 

$ 788,500 $ 858,184 $ 892,119 

1,175 1,260 1,200 

789,675 859,444 893,319 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 33,935 

(60) 

33,875 

Expenditures: 
Current - 

General govcrnment: 
Collection fees 
Professional fees 

Total general government 

5,500 9,111 8,951 
9,760 6,340 6,224 

15,260 15,451 15,175 

160 
116 

276 

Excess of revenues 

over expenditures 774,415 843,993 878,144 

Other financing use: 
Transfer to Street Capital Projects Fund (1,379,355) (2,063,262) 291 

Net change in fund balance (604,940) (1,219,269) (1,055,147) 

Fund balance, beginning 1,752,827 1,752,827 ,752,827 

Fundbalance,ending $1,147,887 $ 533,558 $ 697,680 

34,151 

129,97 1 

164,122 

$ 164,122 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 
201 1 Recreation Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

original Final Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) 

$ 3,021,000 $ 3,2g2,097 $ 3,366,598 $ 84,501 

4,840 • 6,211 6,525 314 

3,025,840 3,288,308 3,373,123 84,8 15 

Revenues: 
Taxes - 

Sales taxes - 1/2% 

Miscellaneous - 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General governinent: 

Collection fees 
Professional fees 

Total general government 

Culture ancl recreation: 
Ida Crouchet Park - 

Repairs and maintenance 
Utilities 
Supplies 

Total culture anð recreation 

Capital outlay: 
Ida Crouchet Park improvements 

Total expenðitures  

24,890 22,010 19,693 
6,500 5,830 5,716 

31,390 27,840 25,409 

2,100 7,430 5,570 
2,500 3,341 8,652 

500 8,572 3,796 

5,100 19,343 18,018 

11,269 8,249 

3 6,490 58,452 51,676 

2,317 
1 14 

2,431 

1,860 
(5,311) 
4,776 

1,325 

3,020 

6,776 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures 2,989,350 3,229,856 3,321,447 91,591 

Other financing use: 
Transfer from General Fund (1,210,000) - - - 
Transfcr to Parks and Recreation Fund (1,685,419) (3,080,625) (2,655,625) 425,000 

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,895,419) (3,080,) (2,655,625) 425,000 

Net change in fund balance 93,931 149,231 665,822 516,591 

Fund balance, beginning 2,078,705 2,078,705 2,078,705 

Fund balance, ending $ 2,172,636 $ 2,227,936 $ 2,744,527 $ 516,591 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 
Schedule ofEmployers Share ofNet Pension Liability 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022* 

Yeai 
Ended 

June 30, 

Employer 
Proportion 

of the 
Net Pension 

Liability 
(Asset) 

Employer 
Proportionate 
Sbare ofthe 
Net Pension 

Liability 
(Asset) 

Employers 
Covered 
Payroll 

Emp1oyers 
Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension 

Liability (Asset) as a 
Percentage of its 
Covered Payroll 

Pan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

as a Percentage 
of the Total 

Pension Liability 

2022 0160195% $ 853,927 $ 486,372 175.6% 84.09% 
2021 0.172072% 1,590,346 53 1,495 299.2% 70.94% 
2020 0.042158% 382,865 131,656 290.8% 71.01% 

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end. 

This schedule is intended to show informationfor 10 years. Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available. 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOI]IS1ANA 

Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 
Schedule of Employer Contributions 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Year Ended 
June 30, 

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution 

Contributions in 
Relation to 

Contractual 
Required 

Contribution 

Contribution 
Deficiency 
(Excess) 

Contributions 
Employers as a % of 

Covered Covered 
Employee Employee 

Payroll Payroll 

2022 210,661 $ 210,661 $ 708,105 29.75% 
2021 164,151 164,151 486,372 33.75% 
2020 lfl,736 172,736 531,495 32.50% 

This schedule is intended to show informationfor ¡O years. Additional years will be displayed as they 
become available. 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOIJISIANA 

Notes to the Required Supplementary Infoiìnation 

(1) Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial staternents: 

The City Clerk submits no later than 15 days prior to the beginning of each fiscal 
year, a proposed budget to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen. 

2. A sumrnaiy of the proposed budget is published, and the public notified that the 
proposed buclget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public 
hearing is called. 

3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication 
of the call for the hearing. 

4. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to 
finalize and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an 
ordinance prior to the commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is 
being adopted. 

Budgetary amendrnents involving an increase in a funds appropriations require 
the approval of the Board of Aldermen. The Mayor may transfer budget amounts 
between ðepartments within any fund. The level of budgetary control is by total 
appropriations (by furid); however, for report purposes, the budgetary information 
has beeri expanded. 

A11 budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

7. Budgets for all funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as 
amended by the Board ofAldermen. 

(2) Pension Plan 

Changes of assumptíons about future economic or ðemographíc factors or of other inputs 
were recognized iri pension expense using the straight-line amortization methoð over a closed period 
equal to the average of the expected remaining service Iives of all employees that were provided 
with pension s througb the pension plan. These assumptions include the rate of irivestment return, 
mortality of plan members, rate of salary increases, rates of termination, rates of disability, and 
various other factors that have an impact on the cost ofthe plan. 

(continued) 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Notes to the Required Supplementary lnformation (Continued) 

(3) Excess of Exyenditures Over Approyriations 

For the year encled June 3 0, 2022, the City had actual expenditures over appropriations at 
the funetional level, as follows: 

Fund/Function 
General Fund: 

General government 
Economic development 
Streets and drainage 
Capital outlay 

Budget 

$ 2,317,719 
409,781 

3,454,439 
1,068,043  

Actual 

$ 2,462,760 
416,836 

3,458,922 
1,154,923  

Excess 

$ (145,041) 
(7,055) 
(4,483) 

(86,880) 
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OTHER SJPPLE11NTARY ]NFORMATION 



2022 
Business-

 

Governmental Type 
Activities Activities 

$ 14,365,224 $ 680,184 
1,956,206 699,933 

36,815 (36,815) 
656,788 231,248 
318,458 107,879 

17,333,491 1,682,429 

4,699,806 1,608,495 

2021 
Total Totals 

$ 15,045,408 $ 12,767,640 
2,656,139 3,859,325 

888,036 662,971 
426,337 265,564 

19,015,920 17,555,500 

6,308,301 6,641,594 

12,191,570 5,180,948 17,372,5 18 

23,804,956 57,818,596 81,623,552 
512,139 67,395 579,534 

41,208,471 64,675,434 105,883,905 

58,541,962 66,357,863 124,899,825 

413,659 - 413,659 
923,834 - 923,834 

1,337,493 - 1,337,493 

12,622,563 

82,008,559 
216,649 

101,489,365 

l 19,044,865 

443,206 
1,362,222 

1,805,428 

1,295,344 
2,352,389 

850,000 
140,910 
167,646 
835,000 

89,340 

5,730,629 

585,154 
853,927 
3 14,989 
348,3 17 

15,594,014 

17,696,401 

23,427,030 

327,015 

38,081 
46,000 

845,000 
128,564 
493,818 

1,878,478 

146,163 

20,117 
987,903 

23,213,519 

24,367,702 

26,246,180 

1,622,359 
2,352,389 

850,000 
178,991 
213,646 

1,680,000 
217,904 
493,818 

107 

731,317 
853,927 
335,106 

1,336,220 
38,807,533 

42,064,103 

49,673,210 

l ,528,689 

946,828 
64,527 

250,578 
1,495,000 

259,171 
439,368 

4,984,161 

649,978 
1,590,346 

97,966 
1,549,866 

40,541,521 

44,429,677 

49,4 13,838 

525,143 - 525,143 

26,387,411 38,752,122 65,139,533 
7,767,490 - 7,767,490 
1,764,641 131,242 1,895,883 
2,845,830 - 2,845,830 

(2,838,090) 1,228,319 

$35,927,282 $40,111,683 $ 76,038,965 

101,890 

58,608,747 
8,818,366 
2,381,020 
2,867,040 

j1,340,60) 

$ 71,334,565 

CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Statement ofNet Position 
June 30, 2022 

With Comparative Totals as ofJune 30, 2021 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash and interest-bearing deposìts 
Receivables, net 
Internal balanees 
Due from other governmental agencies 
Prepaid items 

Total eurrent assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets - 

Cash anð interest-bearing deposits 
Capital assets - 

Lancl and construetion in progress 

Capital assets, net 
Right-to-use assets, net 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

DEFEREED OUTFLOWS OF ItESOURCES 
Deferrecl loss on bond refunding 
Deferred outf1ow related to pensions 

Total deferreð outflows ofresourees 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts, salaries and other payables 
Deferred revenuc 
Due to other governmentat agencics 
Right-of-use lease liability 
Loan payable 
Bonds payablc 
Accrued intercst payable 
Customers deposits payable 

Total current liabilìties 

Noncurrent Iiabi1ities: 
Compensatcd absences payabte 
Net pension liability 
Right-of-use lcasc liability 
Loan payable 
Bonds payable 

Total noneurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INIFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred inflows related to pensions 
NET lOSITION 

Net investment in eapital assets 
Restricted for sales tax dedications 
Restricteð for debt service 
Restricted for cxternal legal constraint 
Unrestricted (defìcit) 

Total nct position 
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CITY OF BROUSSAED, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Schedule of Revenues 
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Enðed June 30, 202 1 

2022 
Variance - 
Positive 2021 

fludget Actual (Negative) Actual 
Revenues: 

Taxes - 
Franchise taxes 
Salestaxes- 1% 

Total taxes 

Licenses and permits - 
Occupational licenses 
Insurance licenses 
Permits 

Total licenses and permits 

Intergovemmenta1 - 
Federal sources - 

Bu11etproof vest partnership grant 
FEMA reimbursement 

State sources - 
Video poker 
On-behalf payments 
Beer taxes 
Highway maintenance 

Local sources - 
Lafayette Parish School Board 
Lafayette Consolidated Government 
Broussard Economic Development 

Total intergovemmental 

Fines and forfeits and seizures 

Miscellaneous - 
Interest 
Planning/review fees 
Sale of assets 
Other 

Tota1 miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

1,248,935 $ 1,311,618 $ 62,683 $ 1,163,768 
6,564,821 6,733,824 169,003 6,262,676 

7,813,756 8,045,442 23 1,686 7,426,444 

911,215 918,491 7,276 731,981 
409,425 441,430 32,005 411,524 
537,632 582,711 45,079 760,084 

1,85 8,272 1,942,632 84,360 1,903 ,589 

3,885 2,927 (958) 3,225 
33,901 46,111 12,210 516,800 

85,519 98,776 13,257 115,350 
200,333 200,183 (150) 195,950 
20,699 22,438 1,739 19,081 
14,010 14,010 14,790 

160,710 161,901 1,191 133,821 
33,409 33,409 - 40,384 

- - - 15,000 

552,466 579,755 27,289 1,054,40 1 

532,284 522,695 (9,589) 496,385 

20,747 
46,050 
58,632 

255,758 

381,187 

11,137,965 
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20,747 
46,050 
53,402 

246,034 

366,233 

$ 11,456,757 

(5,230) 
(9,724) 

(14,954) 

$ 318,792 

17,884 
37,687 
47,798 

177,506 

280,875 

$ 11,161,694 



CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Schedule of Expenclitures 
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

2022 
Variance - 
Positive 2021 

Actual (Negativc) Actual 
Current - 

General government 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Group insurance 
Retirement 
Auto allowance 
Insurance 
Offlce 
Utilities 
îelephone 
Advertising 
Dues and subscriptions 
Sales tax collection fees 
Supplies 
Legal 
Aeconnting 
Engineering 
Professional fees 
Training anð travel 
Building inspection fees 
Miscellaneous 
Magistrate court 
Repairs and maintenance 
Civjl scrvice salaries 

Total general governmcnt 

Economic development 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Group insurance 
Retirement 
BEDC appropriation 
Advertising 
Dues and subscnptions 
Supplies 
Office expcnse 
Misceilaneous 
profcssionaí fces 
Repairs and maintenance 
Training and travel 

Tota1 economic development  

Buc1get 

725,822 
52,810 

155,873 
49,570 
10,350 
52,925 
64,494 
30,351 
11,910 
18,261 
20,025 
44,572 
18,546 
95,074 
23,570 

195,033 
263,064 

8,531 
323,306 

28,626 
56,016 
62,990 
6,000 

2,317,719 

106,310 
7,850 

18,296 
4,848 

223 ,000 
1,722 
7,06 1 
1,095 
3 ,800 

952 
33,352 

1,495 

409,781  

$ 710,545 
55,349 

155,830 
49,590 
10,350 
53,188 
63,558 
30,620 
11,486 
15,799 
29,629 
39,361 
18,595 
93,166 
23,615 

211,928 
286,919 

8,622 
434,175 
34,204 
55,537 
64,694 
6,000 

2,462,760 

109,186 
8,185 

18,981 
4,848 

223,000 
1,559 
6,953 
1,209 
3 ,042 

775 
37,628 

250 
1,220 

416,836  

15,277 
(2,539) 

43 
(20) 

(263) 
936 

(269) 
424 

2,462 
(9,604) 
5,211 

(49) 
1,908 

(45) 
(l 6,895) 
(23,855) 

(91) 
(110,869) 

(5,578) 
479 

(1,704) 

(2,876) 
(335) 
(685) 

163 
108 

(114) 
758 
177 

(4,276) 
(250) 
275 

(7,055) 

$ 729,203 
55,819 

163,300 
48,166 
9,600 

54,040 
52,630 
23,708 
11,155 
19,811 
24,637 
70,383 
10,740 
89,871 
22,460 

220,979 
218,768 

5,709 
568,554 
18,675 
64,430 
31,127 
6,000 

2,5 19,765 

97,778 
7,117 

14,845 
4,704 

176,000 
1,882 
3,460 
2,457 
3,503 

352 
27,523 

1,337 

340,958 

(continued) 



CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 
General Fund 

Schedule of Expenditures 
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Enðed June 30, 2021 

2022 
Variance - 
Positive 2021 

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 
Public safety: 

Poliee department - 
Salaries 
On-behalfpayments - salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Group insurance 
!nsurance 
Auto 
Auto allowance 
Uniforms and supplies 
Legal 
Professional fees 
Miscellaneous 
K-9 expenses 
Repairs and maintenance 
Training 
Dues anð subscriptions 
Utilities ancl communication 

Total police department 

Fire department - 
Appropriation to Broussard Fire Department: 

Operations 
capital 

Total fire department 

Total public safety 

Streets and c!rainage: 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Retirement 
Group insurance 
Insurance 
Auto 
Equipment rent 
Equipment operating costs 
Street and drainage maintenance 
Drainage stuðies - engineering 
Professional 
Oftice 
Engineering 
Utilities and communication 
Unìforms and supplies 
Casual labor 
Miscellaneous 

Total slxeets and drainage 

1,912,781 
200,183 
156,279 
3 16,620 
404,424 
203,135 
190,147 

18,000 
65,000 

9,289 
32,558 
11,416 

193 
50,324 
17,409 

154,130 
75,877 

3,817,765 

1,540,637 
1 14,060 
138,165 
298,372 
216,315 
123,070 

31,306 
125,045 
342,253 

74,915 
14,791 

7,902 
98,815 

144,887 
146,500 

37,406 

3,454,439  

1,922,145 
200,183 
154,163 
311,638 
403,628 
203,135 
189,152 

18,000 
61,622 

8,730 
27,372 
9,462 

193 
45,476 
15,432 

147,848 
69,982 

3,788,161 

1,559,945 
115,735 
138,041 
299,840 
216,315 
127,857 
26,306 

126,575 
323,488 

72,016 
19,616 

7,042 
91,471 

147,870 
144,224 
27,520 
15,061 

3,458,922  

(9,364) 

2,116 
4,982 

796 

995 

3,378 
559 

5,186 
1,954 

4,848 
1,977 
6,282 
5,895 

29,604 

(19,308) 
(1,675) 

124 
(1,468) 

(4,787) 
5,000 

(1,530) 
18,765 
2,899 

(4,825) 
860 

7,344 
(2,983) 
2,276 

(27,520) 
22,345 

(4,483)  

1,693,320 
l 95,950 
147,967 
258,928 
387,946 
176,280 
129,275 

9,253 
69,557 
94,815 
21,714 
10,352 

2,362 
46,024 
13,846 
75,852 
66,441 

3,399,882 

1,309,743 
138,723 

1,448,466 

4,848,348 

1,397,671 
106,300 
113,994 
285,493 
200,768 
86,572 
22,002 
92,835 

871,527 
55,797 
16,788 
2,439 

137,506 
l 40,949 
139,816 

21,393 

3,691,850 

(continued) 

1,538,258 1,515,907 22,351 
12,107 17,212 (5.1) 

1,550,365 1,533,119 17,246 

5,368,130 5,321,280 46,850 
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15,946 

10,063 
16,088 
4,120 

41,952 

15,946 

10,063 
16,088 
4,120 

41,952 

289,934 
24,583 
11,589 
17,130 
20,744 

121,004 
431,734 

66,924 
76,009 

54,000 
230,203 

1,068,043 

191,188 
431,734 

66,924 
76,009 

50,890 
250,009 

1,154,923 

3,110 
(19,806) 

(86,880) 

99,804 
101,755 
115,470 

53,654 
39,827 
70,656 

1,107,582 

(70,184) 262,436 

CITY OF BROUSSARI), LOUTSIANA 
General Fund 

Schedule of Expenclitures 
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual (Continued) 

For the Year Erided June 30, 2022 
With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

2022 
Variance - 

Positive 2021 
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Capital outlay: 
General goverriment - 

Valsin Broussard house 
City Ha11 improvements 
Equipment 
Soflware and vebsites 
Municipal complex 
Bast Madison Street parking lot 

Police - 
Vehicles and equipment 
Right-of-use assets 

Streets and drainage - 
Christmas decorations 
Right-of-use assets 
Streets overlay 
Main street parking 
Drainage project - District 2 
Drainage improvements 
Vehicles and equipment 

Total capital outlay 

Debt service: 
principal 
Interest 

Total debt service 

Total expenclitures 

355,800 325,217 30,583 295, 149 

28,050 23,882 4,168 24,211 

383,850 349,099 34,751 3 19,360 

$ 13,001,962 $ 13,163,820 $ (161) $ 12,827,863 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 
1992 Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

2022 
Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 202 1 
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Revenues: 
Taxes - 

Sales taxes - 1% 

Miscellaneous - 
Interest 

Total revenues 

$6,564,821 $6,733,824 $169,003 $6,262,676 

14,777 14,990 213 13,716 

6,579,598 6,748,814 169,216 6,276,392 

Expenditures: 
Current - 

General government: 
Collection fees 
Professional fees 

Total expenditures 

Bxcess of revenues 
over expenðitures 

43,994 39,361 4,633 70,383 
14,060 14,555 (495) 13,472 

58,054 53,916 4,138 83,855 

6,521,544 6,694,898 173,354 6,192,537 

Other financing uses: 
Transfer to üeneral Fund (1,300,000) (1,300,000) 
Transfer to Utility Fund (400,000) (400,000) 
Transfer to ðebt service funds (1,469,449) (1,469,449) 
Transfer to LCDBG/Streets Capital Project Fund (4,232,000) (4,187,000) 

Total other financing uses (7,401,449) (7,356,449) 

45,000 

45,000 

(2,650,000) 
(1,600,000) 
(1,469,065) 

(45 5 ,000) 

(6,174,065) 

Net change in fund balance (879,905) (661,551) 218,354 18,472 

Funð balance, beginning 4,986,834 4,986,834 - 4,968,362 

Fund balance, ending $ 4,106,929 $ 4,325,283 $218,354 $ 4,986,834 
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9,111 8,951 
6,340 6,224 

15,451 15,175 

15,451 15,175 

843,993 878,144 

160 8,152 
116 6,456 

276 14,608 

276 14,608 

34,151 798,796 

(2,063 ,262) (1,933,291) 129,97 1 (856,) 

(1,219,269) (1,055,147) 164,122 (57,970) 

1,752,827 1,752,827 1,810,797 

$ 533,558 $ 697,680 $ 164,122 $ 1,752,827 

CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 
TIF Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenciitures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 
Budget (GAAP l3asis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

2022 
Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 202 1 
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

$ 858,184 $ 892,119 $ 33,935 $ 812,198 

1,260 1,200 (60) 1,206 

859,444 893,319 33,875 813,404 

Revenues: 
Taxes - 

Sales taxes 
Miscellaneous - 

Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current - 

General government: 
Collection fees 
Professional fees 

Total general government 

îotal expenditures 

Excess of revenues 

over expenditures 

Other financing uses: 
Transfer to Street Capital Proects Fund 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending 
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22,010 19,693 
5,830 5,716 

27,840 25,409 

7,430 5,570 
3,341 8,652 
8,572 3,796 

19,343 18,018 

11,269 8,249 

58,452 51,676 

2,317 35,229 
114 4,440 

2,431 39,669 

1,860 2,264 
(5,311) 2,694 
4,776 702 

1,325 5,660 

3,020 14,318 

6,776 59,647 

3,229,856 

(3,080,625) 

149,23 1 

2,078,705 

$ 2,227,936 

3,321,447 91,591 3,075,910 

(2,655,625) 425,000 (2,445,981) 

665,822 516,591 629,929 

2,078,705 - 1,448,776 

$ 2,744,527 $ 516,591 $ 2,078,705 

CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 
20 1 I Reereational Sales Tax Speeial Revenue Fund 

Schedule of Reveuues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

2022 
Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 202 1 
Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Revenues: 
Taxes - 

Sales taxes - 1/2% 

ìvtiscellaneous - 
Interest 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General government: 

Collection fees 
professional fees 

Total general govenunent 

Culture and recreatìon: 
Ida Crouchet Park - 

Repairs and maiiitenance 
Utilitites 
Supplies 

Total culture and recreation 

Capital outlay: 
lda Crouehet Park improvements 

Total expenditures 

Excess ofrevernies 

over expenditures 

Other fmancing uses: 
Transfer to Parks and Recreation Fund 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending 

$ 3,282,097 $ 3,366,598 $ 84,501 $ 3,130,705 

6,211 6,525 314 4,852 

3,288,308 3,373,123 84,8 15 3,135,557 



CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 
LCDBG/Streets Capital Projeets Fund 

Scheciule of Revenues, Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balance - 
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

With Comparative Aetua1 Amounts for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

2022 
Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
Budget Actual (Negative) 2021 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmentat revenue - 
State grants 
LCDBG federal grant 

Total intergovernmental revenue 
Other - devetoper contributions 

Total revenues 

Bxpenditures: 
Current - 

General government: 
Professional fees 

Capitat outlay - 
Streets and drainage: 

La Neuville Road reconstruction 
South Bernard Road Phase 11 
South Bernard Roað Phase 111 
Southwood / Cruise reconstruction 
Garber Road outfall channel maintenance 
South Bernarð Phase H lighting 
Highway 89 improvements 
Street overlay 
Main Street Phase 1 
Main Street Phase 11 
Main Street Phase 111 
Fairfield / Marteau intersection improvements 
South Bernard Road J-turns 
St. Naaire Road improvements 
Lake Talon Road draìnage 

îotal capital outlay 

Totat expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfer from TIF Sales Tax Fund 
Transfer from General Fund 
Transfer from 1992 Sales Tax Fund 
Transfer to Utility Fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance, beginning 

Fund balance, ending  

$ 405,641 $ 350,143 $ (55,498) $ 162,456 
227,982 227,982 - 122,018 

633,623 578,125 (55,498) 284,474 
231,425 230,764 (661) - - 

865,048 808,889 (56,159) 284,474 

2,535 2,600 (65) 2,716 

38,02.2 31,124 6,898 360 
I ,433,05 1 1,435,300 (2,249) 841,157 

146,078 162,670 (16,592) 76,534 
394,000 388,918 5,082 

19,704 19,704 
144,495 144,495 
41,687 32,958 8,729 

1, 100,000 l ,096,645 3,355 
1,747,346 1,676,693 70,653 120,067 

3 50,000 330,460 19,540 47,821 
200,000 170,691 29,309 94,887 
181,697 18L697 31,918 
235,716 55,681 180,035 15,609 

7,612 6,132 1,480 2,288 
24,695 24,695 

6,064,103 5,757,863 306,240 1,230,64 1 
6,066,63 8 5,760,463 306,175 l ,233,357 

(4,951,574) 250,016 (948,883) 

2,063,262 1,933,291 (129,97 1) 856,766 
660,120 629,356 (30,764) - 

4,182,000 4, 187,000 5,000 455,000 
(,617,546) (1,609,226) 8,320 (655,072) 

5,287,836 5,140,421 (147,415) 656,694 

86,246 188,847 102,601 (292,189) 
3,551 3,551 - 295,740 

$ 89,797 $ 192,398 $ 102,601 $ 3,551 



CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUTSIANA 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Combining Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2022 

With Comparative Totals for June 30, 2021 

2016 2015 2011 
Sales Tax Sales Tax DEQ Totals 

Bond Bond Bond 2022 2021 

ASSETS 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 
Receivables: 

Due from other funds 

Total Assets 

$1,119,331 $ 392,843 $341,802 $1,853,976 $ 1,858,479 

- 2 3 5 5 

1,1 19,33 1 392,845 341,805 1,853,981 1,858,484 

LIABILITIES ANÐ FUNÐ BALANCES 

Liabilities $ - $ -$ -$ - $ 

Fund balances: 
Restricted for debt service 1,1 19,33 1 392,845 341,805 1,853,981 1,858,484 

Total liabilities andfundbalances $1,119,331 $ 392,845 $341,805 $1,853,981 $ 1,858,484 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISJANA 
Noninajor Governmental Fnnds 

Combining Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Cbanges in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

With Comparative Totals for Year Ended June 30, 2021 

2016 2015 201 1 
Sales Tax Sales Tax DEQ Totals 

Bond Bond Bond 2022 2021 
Revenues: 

Miscellaneous - interest earned 

Expenditures: 
Debt service - 

Principal retirement 
lnterest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues 
over expenditures 

Other financing sources: 
Transfers in 

Net change in fnnd balances 

Fund balances, beginning  

$ 6,192 $ 387 $ 646 $ 7,225 $ 7,094 

315,000 385,000 189,000 889,000 867,000 
256,400 317,073 18,704 592,177 618,655 

571,400 702,073 207,704 1,481,177 1,485,655 

(565,208) (701 ,686) (207,058) (1,473,952) (1,478,561) 

568,492 700,03 1 200,926 1 ,469,449 1 ,469,065 

3,284 (1,655) (6,132) (4,503) (9,496) 

1,116,047 394,500 347,937 1,858,484 1,867,980 

Fund balances, ending $ 1,119,331 $392,845 $341,805 $1,853,981 $ 1,858,484 



CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUTSIANA 

Comparative Statement of Net Position 
Enterprise Fund 

Utility Fund 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 

Accounts receivable, net 
Due from other govemmental agencies 
Prepaid insurance 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets - 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 
Capital assets - 

Land and construction in progress 
Capital assets, net 
Right-of-use assets, net 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Aecounts payable 
Retainage payable 
Contracts payable 
Aecrued expenses 
Due to other funds 
Right-of-use lease liability 
Loan payable 
Customers deposits (payable from restricted assets) 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 

Compensated absences payable 

Rìght-of-use lease liability 

Loan payable 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total net position  

2022 

$ 246,591 
669,183 
226,687 

70,672 

1,213,133 

493,818 

1,901,499 
27,766,220 

57,740 

30,219,277 

3 1,432,410 

262,647 

20,046 
3,789 

32,783 
46,000 

493,818 

859,083 

100,480 

15,544 

987,903 

1,103,927 

1,963,010 

28,633,816 
835,584 

$ 29,469,400 

2021 

$ 405,764 
488,418 

48,881 
52,601 

995,664 

439,368 

2,4 14,502 
26,9 12,546 

100,545 

29,866,961 

30,862,625 

165,790 
4,457 

40,117 
12,478 
2,079 

31,402 
45,000 

439,368 

740,691 

95,585 

48,326 

1,033,903 

1,177,814 

1,918,505 

28,248,145 
695,975 

$ 28,944,120 



CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - 
Enterprise Funð 

Utility Fund 
For the Years Enðed June 30, 2022 and 2021 

2022 2021 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 
Miscellaneous 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Water 
Sewer 
Garbage 

Total operating expenses 

Loss from operations 

Nonoperatirig revenues (expenses): 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Grant revenue 
Gain on sale of capita assets 

Total nonoperating revenue (expeases) 

Loss before capital contributions and transfers 

Capital contributions 

Transfers: 
Transfer from 1992 Sales Tax Fund 
Transfer from Capital Projects Fund 

Total transfers 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning, as restated 

Net position, ending 

$ 4,605,630 $ 3,945,097 
638,234 538,180 

5,243,864 4,483 ,277 

3,136,288 2,606,463 
2,3 82,094 2,297,433 
1,395,079 1,298,242 

6,913,461 6,202,138 

(1,669,597) (1,718,861) 

1,120 1,255 
(25,882) (29,059) 
29,198 29,198 
28,300 1,133 

32,736 2,527 

(1,636,861) (1,716,334) 

152,915 63,824 

400,000 1,600,000 
1,609,226 65 5,072 

226 2,255,072 

525,280 602,562 

28,944,120 28,341,558 

$ 29,469,400 $ 28,944,120 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Net Position 
Enterprise Fund 

Parks anð Recreation Fund 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 
Accounts receivable 
Due from other funðs 
Due from other governmental agencies 
Prepaid insurance 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets - 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 
Capital assets - 

Land and construction in progress 
Capital assets, net 

Right-of-use asset, net 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Due to other funds 
Right-of-use lease liability 
Payable from restricted assets: 

Bonds payable 
Accrued interest payable 

Total current liabilities 
Noncurrent Iiabi1ities: 

Compensated absences payable 
Right-of-use lease liability 

Bonds payable, net ofdiscount on bond issuance 
Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net position  

2022 

$ 433,593 
30,750 

4,561 
37,207 

506,111 

1,114,677 

3 ,279,449 
30,052,376 

9,655 

34,456,157 

34,962,268 

44,022 
300 

33,026 
5,298 

845,000 
128,564 

1,056,210 

45,683 
4,573 

23,213,519 
23,263,775 

24,3 19,985 

10,118,306 
131,242 
392,735 

$ 10,642,283 

2021 

$ 455,424 
28,794 

3,525 
4,561 

27,264 

519,568 

1,098,092 

3,289,594 
30,902,564 

14,921 

35,305,171 

35,824,739 

24,189 
12,778 

5,098 

695,000 
165,078 

902,143 

50,610 
9,871 

23,940,000 
24,000,481 

24,902,624 

10,252,158 
238,014 
431,943 

$ 10,922,115 
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577,649 
90,611 
80,034 

105,791 
91,579 

139,568 
17,871 

165,070 
130,905 

80,895 
26,274 
11,249 
8,750 
3,134 
1,814 

27,813 
626 

60,660 
956,735 

5,266 
2,565 

2,584,859 

11,334 
6,414 

506 
19,717 

37,971 

(1,909,697) 

17,110 

(702,065) 

(22,841) 

(349,078) 

(1,056,874) 

(2,966,57 1) 

31,114 

2,655,625 

2,655,625 

(279,832) 
10,922,115 

$ 10,642,283 

569,539 
118,228 

82,791 
112,479 

59,268 
104,130 

9,262 
163,146 
105,140 
87,018 
21,789 

6,923 
6,624 
5,043 
3,402 

16,151 
885 

156,992 
948,156 

878 

2,577,844 

10,643 
12,739 

605 

9,973 

33,960 

(1,900,871) 

16,913 

(1,014,735) 

(5,003) 

(1,002,825) 

(2,903,696) 

4,755 

82,687 
2,445,981 

2,528,668 

(370,273) 
11,292,388 

$ 10,922,115 

CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOUISIANA 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - 
Enterprise Fund 

Parks and Recreation Fund 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 

2022 2021 
$ 713,133 $ 710,933 Operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
st. julien Sports Complex - 

Salaries 
Contract Iabor - services 
Payroll taxes and retirement 
Group insurance 
Professional fees 
Repairs and maintenance 
Vehicle 
Utilities and comrnunication 
Materials and supplies 
Insurance 
Office 
Uniforms 
Miscellaneous 
Advertising 
Award expenses 
Sponsorship fees 
Conference and travel 
Security fees 
Depreciation 
Depreciation right-to-use assets 
League and tournament expense 

Total St. julien Sports Complex 

Arceneaux Park - 
Utilities and communication 
Materials and supplies 
Professional fees 
Depreciation 
Repairs and maintenance 

Total Arceneaux Park 

Loss from operations 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest ineome 
Interest and fiscal agency fees 

Amortization ofpremium on hond 

Debt issuance cost 
Loss on disposal of capital asset 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Loss before capita1 contributions and transfers 

Capital eontribution 

Transfers: 
Transfer from General Fund 
Transfer from 2011 Recreation Sales Tax Fund 

Tota1 transfers 

Change in net position 
Net position, beginning, as restated 

Net position, ending 
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CJTY OF BROUSSARD, LOUJSIANA 

LCDB Sewer Systen Project 
Sched1e ofNet Position 

June 30, 2022 

2022 

Assets 

LiabiJities 

Net position 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOI.IISIANA 

LCDBG Sewer System Project 
Schedule ofRevenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

2022 
Revenues: 

LCDBG program 

Expenses: 
Constriction 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning 

Net position, ending 

$ 227,982 

227,982 

$ 
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CITY OF BROUSSAR), LOIJ!SIANA 
Enterprise Fund 

Utility Fund 

Schedule ofNumber ofUtility Customers 
(Unauditecl) 

June 30, 2022 and 2021 

Records maintained by tha City indicated the following number of customers were being serviced 

during the month of June, 2022 and 202 1: 

[)epartment 2022 2021 

Water 5,889 5,646 
Sewer 4,620 4,437 
Garbage 4,997 4,823 
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First Six 
Month Period 

Ended 
12/3 1/2021 

$ 27,268 

196,531 
14,637 

204,798 
176 

13,497 

429,639 

Second Six 
Month Period 

Ended 
6/3 0/2022 

$ 15,034 

172,562 
11,886 

182,733 

12,849 

380,030 

CITY OF BROUSSARD, LOJJSJANA 

Justice System Funding Schedule - collectingfDisbursing Entity 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Beginning Balance of Ainounts Collected 

Add: Collections - 
Civil Fees 
Bond Fees 
Asset Forfeiture/Sale 
Pre-Trial Diversion Program Fees 
Criminal Court CostsfFees 
Criminal Fines - Contempt 
Criminal Fines - Other 
Restitution 
probationtParole/Supervision Fees 
Service/Collection Feos 
Interest Earnings on Collected l3alances 
Other 

Subtotal Collections 

Less: Disbursements to Goverriments and Nonprofits - 
Louisiana Commission on Law Enforcement - Criminal Fines 
Louisiana State Treasurer CMJS - Criminal Fines 
Acadiana Criminalistics Lab 
Lafayette Crime Stoppers 
LA Association of Chiefs of Police 
1 Sth JDC Indigent Defender Fund 
Louisiana Traumatic Head and Spinal Cord lnjury Trust Fund 
Louisiana judicial college Collections 
Department ofTreasury, Handicap Parking Fees 
LA Dept of Health & Hospitals THIISCI - Criminal Fines 
Louisiana Supreme Court - Criminal Fines 

4,910 4,475 
5,541 4,803 

52,028 47,017 
4,618 4,005 
1,847 1,602 

64,604 55,999 
5,375 5,110 

920 799 
330 

Less: Amounts Retained by collecting Agency 
Ainounts So1f-Disbursed to collecting Agency - Criminal Fines Other 28S,027 

Less: Disbursements to Individua1s/3rd Party Collection or Processing Agencies 
Restitution Payments to Indiviðua1s 176 
Payments to 3rd Party CollectionlProcessing Agencies 13,497 

Subtotal Disbursements/Retainage 

Ending Balance of Ainounts Collecteð but not DisbursedfRetained 
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241,140 

1,567 
12,848 

3 79,365 

$ 15,699 

441,873 

$ 15,034 



INTERNAL CONTROL, COMPLIANCE 

OTIILER MATTERS 
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A Profeaelonal Acirnting Corporatin 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENTA UDITING STANDARDS 
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Phone (337) 363-2792 Phofls (337) 639-4737 

MìWLKCSRCPAS.COM 

Th.e Honorable Ray Bourque, Mayor 
and Members ofthe Board ofAldermen 

City ofBroussard, Louisiana 

We havc audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally aCcepted in the United States of 
Anierica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in GovernmentAuditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major furtd, and the aggregate remaining fend information of the City of 
Broussard, Louisiana (the City) as ofand for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which colloctively comprise the City s basic financial staternents and have issued our report thereon 
dateð December 27, 2022. 

Interna1 Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered tho Citys internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing oer opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Citys internal control. AcCordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness ofthe Citys internal control. 

A deflciency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
rnanagement or employees, in the normal Course of porforming their assigneð fi.inctions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct misstaternents on a tiniely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
defieiencies, in internal eontrol such that there is a roasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
entitys financial statoments will not be prevented or detected artð corrected on a timely basis. A signijlcant 
deflciency is a deficiency, or combination of defieiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 
weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration ofinternal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragrapb ofthis 
section ancl was not designed to identiiy all deficiencios in internal control that might be niaterial weaknesses 
or significant deficieneies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have 
not been identified. 

Member of: Meniber of: 
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Report on Compiance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Citys financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of fmancial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express sueb an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to he reported under 
Government Accounting Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opiriion on the effectiveness of the entitys 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entitys internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitahle for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:5 13, this report is 
distributed by the Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Kolder, Slaven & Company, LLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

Lafayette, Louisiana 
December 27, 2022 
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Ciry OF BROUSSARD, LOIJISIANA 

Summary Schedule of Current and Prior Year Finclings 
And Management s Corrective Action Plan (Continued) 

Part I. Current Year Findings and Managements Corrective Action Plan 

A. InternaJ Control Findings — 

There are no finding to report under this section. 

B. Compliancc Findings — 

There are no findings to report under this section. 

Part 11. Prior Year Finding 

A. lnternal Control Findings 

There are no findings to report under this section 

B. Cornpliance Findings — 

There are no findings to report under this section. 
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CITY OF BROUSSARD 
Broussarð, Louisiaia 

Agreed-Upon Procedures Report 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 
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A Prcfeaslonai Accounting CDfparatlon 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UIPON PROCEDURES 

The Honorable Ray Bourque, Mayor 
and Members ofthe Board ofAldermen 
City ofBroussard, Louisiana 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

We bave performed the proceciures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor s (LLA s) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for 
the fiscal period july 1, 202 1 through June 30, 2022. The City of Broussards (City) management is 
responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

The City of Broussard, Louisiana has agreed to and acknowledgeð that the procedures performeð 
are appropriate to mcet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures 
on the C/C areas identified in LLAs SAUPs for the fiscal period luly 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. 
Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its 
purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address 
all the itms of interest to a user of this roport and may not meet the needs of all users ofthis report ancl, as 
such, users arc responsible for determining whether the proceduros porformed 

The proceclures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Folicies and Procedures 

1. We obtained and inspected the City s written policies and procedures and observed that they address 
each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the Citys 
operations: 

a) 8udgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

b) Purchasíng, including (1) how purcbases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) ðocumentation required to be 
maintatned for all bids and price quotes. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

d) ReceipislColleclions, including receiving, recording, and preparing cleposits. Also, policies and 
proccdures should include management s actions to determine the completeness of all collections 
for each type ofrevenue or agency fund aclditions (e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 
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e) Payroll/Personnel, inclnding (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtixne worked, and (3) approval process for employee(s) 
rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards,fuel cards, P-Cards, ifapplicable), including (1) how cards are to 
be controlled, (2) allowable business uscs, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers 
of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card 
purchases). 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
catogory ofexpense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

i) Etlaics, including (1) the prohibitions as defmed in Louisiana Revised Statute 42: 1 11 1- 1 12 1, (2) 
actions to be taken ifan ethics violationtakes place, (3) system to monitorpossible ethics violations, 
and (4) a requirement that docuxnentation is maintained to demonstrate that all employees and 
officials were notified of any changes to the entity s ethics policy. 

j) flebt Service, including (l) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosurelElVlMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

k) Information Technology Ðisaster Recovery/Business Continuiy, including (1) identification of 
critical data and frequoncy of data backups, (2) storage of backups in separate physical location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

l) Se.xual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency responsibilities and 
prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Board or Finance Committee 

2. We obtained and inspected the board/fxnance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 
board s enabling legislation, cbarter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal period, 
and: 

a) Observed that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a frequency 
in accordance with the board s enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent document. 

b) Observed that the minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the 
General Fund, quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, anð semi-annual 
budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. 

c) Obtained the prior year audit report and observed the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund. 
If the General Fund had a negative ending unassigned fund balance in the prior year audit report, 
observeð that the minutcs for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a 
formal planto eliminate the negative unrestrieted fund balance in the General Fund. 



Bank Reconcilialions 

3. We obtained a listing of the Citys bank acconnts for the fiscal period from management and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. We asked management to identify the Citys 
main operating account. We selectod City s main operating account and ranclomly selected 4 additional 
accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). We randomly selected one month from the fiscal period, 
obtained and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for selected accounts, and 
observed that: 

a) Bank reconciliations included evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related 
staternent closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

b) Bank reconciliations included evidence that a member of managementlboard member who does 
not hanðle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed 
and dated, electronically logged); and 

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, ifapplicabie. 

Colleciions (excluding electronicfund transftrs) 

4. We obtained a listing of deposit sites for tho fiscal period where deposits for cashlchecksfmoney orders 
(cash) are prepared and managements representation that the listing is complete. We randomly 
selected 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

5. For each deposit site selected, we obtained a listing of collection locations and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. We randomly selected one collection location for each 
deposit site (i.e. 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtained and inspected written policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties (ifno written polieies or procednres, inquired cf employees 
about their job duties) at each collection location, and observed that job duties are properly segregated 
at each collection location such that: 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting eash is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits, unloss another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the ðeposit. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsìble for posting colleetion entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/cffieial is respcnsible for 
reconciling Iedger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

d) The einployee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
ledgers, by revenue scuree and/or ageney fund additions are nct responsible for collecting cash, 
unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

6. We obtained from management a copy ofthe bond or insurance policy for theft covering all employees 
who have access to cash. We observed the bond or insurance policy for theft was enforced during the 
fiscal period. 



7. We randomly selected two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 
under Baiik Reconciliations above (selected the next deposit date chronologically ifno deposits were 
made on the datos randomly selected and randomly selected a deposit if multiple deposits are made on 
the same clay). Alternately, the practtioner may use a source document other than bank statements 
when selecting the deposit datesfor testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt 
book, etc. We obtained supporting documentation for each of the 1() deposits anð: 

a) Observed that receipts are secuentia11y pre-numhered. 

b) Traced sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

c) Traced the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

d) Observeð that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection location 
(within one week ifthe depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit 
is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

e) Traced the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding cardpurchaseslpayments, travel reimbursemenls, andpetty cash 
purchases) 

8. We obtained a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period anð managements 
representation that the listing was complete. We randomly selected 5 locations (or all Iocations if less 
than5). 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, we obtained a listing ofthose employees involvod with non-
payroll purchasing anð payment functions. We obtained written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees ahout 
theirjob duties), and we observed thatjob duties are properly segregated such that: 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, and 
placing an orclerhnaking the purchase. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

c) The employee responsihle for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodical1y reviewing changes to vendor files. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the sigriecl 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

10. For eaeh location selected under #8 above, we obtaineð the Citys non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards arid travel roimbursements) and we obtained management s representation 
that the population is complete. We randomly selected 5 disbursements for each location, we obtained 
supporting documentation for each transaction and: 

a) We observed whether the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice and 
supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received by the 
entity. 

b) We observed that the disbursement documentation includes evidonce (e.g., initial/date, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Credit CardslÐe!iit CardslFuel Cards/P-Cards 

1 1. We obtained fronr management a listing of all active credit cards, bank dobit cards, fuel cards, and P-
cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the narnes of the persons who 
maintained possession of the cards. Wo obtained managements representation that the listing is 
comp1te. 



12. Usìng the listing prepareð by management, we ranðomly selectod 5 cards (or a11 cards if less than 5) 
that were used dnring the fiscal period. We randoinly selected one monthly statement or combined 
statement for each card (for a debit card, we randomly selected one month1y bank statement), we 
obtainecl supporting documentation, and: 

a) We observed that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for creðitldebit card purchases, exception reports 
for excessive fuel card usage) was reviowed and approved, in writing (or electronically approved), 
by someone other than tho authorized card holder. 

b) We obsorved that fmance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selecteð statements. 

13. Using the inonthly statements or combinod statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, 
we randomly selected 1(1 transactions (or all transactions if 1ess than 10) from each statement, and 
obtained supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each card should have 10 transactions 
subject to testing). For each transaction, wo observed that it is supported by (1) an original itemìzed 
receipt that identifies precisely what was purchaseð, (2) written documentation of the business/public 
purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For 
missing reeeipts, we ðescribed the nature of the transaction ancl noted whether managemont had a 
compensating conlrol to address missing receipts, such as a missing receipt statement that is subject 
to increased scrutiny. 

Travel and Travel-Reluied Expense Reimbursements (excluding card triinsactions) 

14. We obtained from management a listing ofall travel and trave1-related expense reimbursernents during 
the fiscal perioð and managements representation that thc listing or general ledger is complete. We 
ranðonily selected 5 reimbursements, we obtained the related expense reimbursemont forms/prepaid 
expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For 
eacb of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

a) Jfreimbursed using a per diem, we observed tho approveð reiinbursement rato is no more than those 
rates established either by the State of Louisiana or tho U.s. (3eneral Services Administration 
(www.gsa.gov). 

b) If reimburseð using actual eosts, we observeci that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifios precisely what was purchasoð. 

c) We observed that each reimbursoment is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purposo (for meal charges, we observed that the documentation includes the names of those 
individnals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure #lh). 

d) We observed that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other 
than the porson receiving reirnbursement. 

Contracts 

15. We obtained from management a listing ofall agrcements/contracts for professional services, materials 
and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or ronewed during the fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. We 
obtaineð managements representation that the listing is complete. We randomly seleeted 5 contracts 
(Or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the yractitioners conlract, ancl: 

a) We observed that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, aðvertised), if required by law. 

b) We observed that the contract was approved by the goveming body/board, if required by policy or 
law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 



c) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), we observed that the oiiginal contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract 
terins (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, was approval documented). 

d) We randomly selected one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, we obtained 
the supporting invoice, agreed the invoice to the contract terms, and observed that the invoice and 
related payment agreed to thc terms and conditions of the contract. 

Payroll and Personnel 

16. We obtained a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fiscal period and 
management s representation that the listing is complete. We randomly selected 5 employees/officials, 
we obtained related paid salaries and personnel files, and we agreed paid salaries to authorized 
sa1aries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

17. We randomly selected one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 cmployees/officials selected 
under # 16 above, we obtained attendance records and 1eave documentation for the pay period, and: 

a) We observed that all selected eniployees/offieials clocumented their daily attendance and leave 
(e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to earn 
leave and does not document his/her attendance and Ieave. However, if the elected official is 
earning Ieave according to policy and/or contract, the official should doeument his/her daily 
attendance and leave.) 

b) We observed that supervisors approved the attendance and Ieave of the selected 
employees/officials. 

c) We observed that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the Citys 
cumulative Ieave records. 

d) We observed the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate found 
within the personnel file. 

18. We obtained a Iisting ofthose employees/officialts that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period and management s representation that the list is complete. We randomly selected two 
employees/officials, we obtained related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in 
managements termination payment calculations and the Citys poliey on termination payments. We 
agreed the hours to the eniployee or officials cumulate leave records, agreed the pay rates to the 
employee/offleials authorized pay rates in the employee or officials personnel files, and agreed the 
termination payment to entity policy. 

19. We obtained management s representation that einployer and employee portions of third-party payroll 
related amounts (e.g,, payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, garnishments, 
workers eompensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have been filed, by 
requíred deadlines. 

Ethics 
20. Using the 5 randomly se1ected employees/officials from procedure #16 under Payroll and Personnel 

above, we obtained ethics documentation from management, and: 

a) We observed that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour of 
ethics training during the fiscal period. 

b) We observed whether the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and 
official were notified of any ehangos to the entity s ethics policy during thc fiseal peiiod, as 
applieable. 



Debt Service 

21. Wc obtained a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. We selected all debt instruments on the 
listing, obtained supporting documentation, and observed State Bond Commission approval was 
obtained for each debt instrument issued. 

22. We obtained a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. We randomly selected one bond/note, inspected debt 
covenants, obtained supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, arid agreed actual 
reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency funds, short-
lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

Fraud Notice 

23. We obtained a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 
management s representation that the listing was complete. We selected all misappropriations on the 
listing, obtained supporting documentation, and observed that the City reportecl the misappropriation(s) 
to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the City is domiciled. 

24. We observe that the City has postod on ìts premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

Information Techiwlogy Disaster Recovery/Busness Continuity 

25. We performed the following procedures, verbally discussed the results with management, and reported 
We perfonned the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

a) We obtained and inspected the entitys most recent documentation that it has backed up its 
critical data (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for backing up 
critical data) and observed that such backup occurred within the past week. ff backups are 
storeð on a physical medium (e.g., tapes, CDs), we observed evidence that backups are 
encrypted before being transported. 

b) We obtained and inspected the entitys most recent doeumentation that it has tested/verified 
that its backups can be restored (if no written documentatiori, inquire of porsonnel responsible 
for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observed evidence that the testiverification was 
successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

c) We obtained a listing ofthe entitys computers currently in use and their related loeations, and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. We randomly seleeted 5 computers 
and observed while managemont demonstrates that the selected computers have current and 
active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use 
are currently supported by the vendor. 

Se,xual Harassmenl 

26. Using tho 5 ranðomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under Payroll and Personnel 
above, we obtained sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observed the 
documentation clemonstrates each employee/officia1 completed at least one hour of sexual harassment 
training during the calendar year. 

27. We observed the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy arid complaint procedure on its website 
(or in a conspicuous location on the entitys premises ifthe ontity does not have a website). 



28. We obtained the entitys annual sexual harassinent report for the current fiscal periocl, observed that 
the report was dated on or before February 1, and observed it includes the applicable requirements of 
R.S. 42:344: 

a) Number and percentage of pubiic servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

c) Number of coinplaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

d) Number of eomplaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action; and 

e) Amount oftime it took to resolve each complaint. 

Eceptions: 

No exceptions were found as a result of applying the procedures above. 

We were engaged by the City of Broussard to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement 
and conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
lnstitute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Aitditing Standards. 
We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the obective of 
which would be tho expression of an opinion or conelusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified 
in the SAIIPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed 
additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to 
you. 

We are required to be independent of the City of Broussard and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requireinents related to our agreed-upon 
procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the seope of testing performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revisec1 
Statute 24:5 13, this report is dislributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Kolder, Slaven & Company, LLC 
Certifled Public Accountants 

Lafayette, Louisiana 
December 2 1, 2022 
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